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Estate of Michael David Adams, et al. vs. Susan Fallini, et al.

Depo International, LLC
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  1            THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

  2              STATE OF NEVADA, COUNTY OF NYE

  3
   Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,    )

  4    by and through his mother JUDITH  )
   ADAMS, individually and on        )

  5    behalf of the estate,             )
                                     ) Case No.

  6                 Plaintiff,           ) CV24539
                                     )

  7        vs.                           ) Dept. No. 2P
                                     )

  8    SUSAN FALLINI, DOES I-X and ROE   )
   CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,      )

  9                                      )
                Defendants.          )

 10    __________________________________)

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15                          HEARING

 16                        JULY 28 2014

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25   Reported by:  Teri R. Ward, CCR NO. 839
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  1   APPEARANCES:

  2   For the Plaintiff:

  3                 JOHN P. ALDRICH, ESQ.
                Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.

  4                 1601 South Rainbow Boulevard
                Suite 160

  5                 Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

  6   For the Defendants:

  7                 DAVID R. HAGUE, ESQ.
                Fabian & Clendenin, P.C.

  8                 215 South State Street
                Suite 1200

  9                 Salt Lake City, UT 84111

 10   For the Defendants:

 11                 JOHN OHLSON, ESQ.
                275 Hill Street

 12                 Reno, Nevada 89501

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25
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  1               THE COURT:  Adams versus Fallini, 24539.

  2               MR. OHLSON:  Good morning, Your Honor.

  3               THE COURT:  Good morning.  Let's give

  4   people a little bit of time to shuffle in and out

  5   and then we'll make a record.  What page is Fallini

  6   on?  Page 7.

  7               Okay, counsel.  Everybody's came on in

  8   and sat down now, and you were about to state for

  9   the record your name, and we were going to get

 10   started.  So go ahead, please.

 11               MR. OHLSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  If I may,

 12   John Ohlson and David Hague for Mrs. Fallini, who's

 13   present.  We're ready to proceed.  Mr. Hague is a

 14   partner in the law firm of Fabian & Clendenin, also,

 15   adjunct -- or I don't know if he's adjunct, but he's

 16   a --

 17               MR. HAGUE:  That's right.

 18               MR. OHLSON:  -- law professor and --

 19               THE COURT:  Good.  And Mr. Aldrich.

 20   Very good.

 21               MR. ALDRICH:  John Aldrich, yes, for the

 22   Plaintiff.

 23               THE COURT:  All right.  Case No. 24539,

 24   Adams versus Fallini.  It's the time and place set

 25   for a motion for relief from judgment and also any
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  1   other information that we're going to get out on the

  2   motion to quash the subpoena duces tecum for the

  3   business records.  I --

  4               MR. OHLSON:  Mr. Hague is going to argue

  5   the motion, Your Honor.

  6               THE COURT:  Very good.  Counsel, I've

  7   read the briefs, but this is your chance to make a

  8   record, so go ahead.

  9               MR. HAGUE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 10   Thanks for letting us come here today, and we have

 11   quite a few supporters for Ms. Fallini.  They've

 12   traveled all over the place.

 13               This is an important hearing.  It's an

 14   important hearing for my client.  I've traveled from

 15   Texas.  My other partner's traveled from Salt Lake.

 16   We view this as a very important motion, and we're

 17   grateful the Court has allowed us to present it

 18   today.

 19               THE COURT:  Okay.

 20               MR. HAGUE:  Your Honor, as you can see,

 21   there are several supporters here because they also

 22   have a stake in the outcome of this case.  It's not

 23   just Ms. Fallini, who's here.

 24               You know, I've thought about this case

 25   for the past couple of years over and over again,
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  1   and I've never had a case where I've stayed up at

  2   night scratching my head and feeling so perplexed

  3   and frustrated about what's happened here.  I never

  4   had a case where the Defendant was 100 percent

  5   innocent as a matter of law and then somehow loses

  6   over a $1,000,000.  I've never had that.

  7               Your Honor's practiced law, and you've

  8   probably dealt with similar situations where you

  9   represent a plaintiff or you represent a defendant.

 10   You've got some gray areas and your case looks

 11   really good at first, but then it just starts to get

 12   uglier and uglier.  That's the one thing that's

 13   never happened here because I've looked at this and

 14   I've said Ms. Fallini is truly a victim.

 15               And I've discussed this case with

 16   colleagues.  I've discussed it with some of the

 17   professors where I teach law.  I've discussed it

 18   with my colleagues, other attorneys, and we keep

 19   scratching our head as to how this could have

 20   happened.  And I think the answer, Your Honor, that

 21   I truly believe 100 percent is that this Court was

 22   deceived by Plaintiff's attorney who is also an

 23   officer of the court.

 24               He blatantly ignored and violated his

 25   duty of candor and committed fraud upon the Court in
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  1   obtaining an over $1,000,000 judgment against

  2   Ms. Fallini.

  3               Your Honor, for the judicial process to

  4   function, especially at the state level, the Court

  5   has to rely on Counsel's honesty and integrity.

  6   I've watched Your Honor conduct several hearings

  7   here today, lots of people presenting very silly

  8   things, the hearing we just heard.  But your job,

  9   when you sit up there as a lawyer, is to trust me

 10   that what I tell you, that what I present before you

 11   is truthful, that it's honest, and that I have a

 12   basis under the law for doing so.  I owe you a duty

 13   of loyalty as a lawyer.

 14               And as lawyers, we have these rules that

 15   tell us when we file documents with the court that

 16   we must certify that what we are putting on paper is

 17   warranted by existing law and that the allegations

 18   have evidentiary support.  We have other rules that

 19   tell us we can assert only an issue when there is a

 20   clear basis in law and that doing so is not

 21   frivolous.

 22               Your Honor, these rules were not

 23   followed in the case.  And it's not the Court's

 24   fault because the Court relied on fraudulent

 25   representations.  The Court did its job.  It trusted
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  1   the lawyers in this case.  And as a result, my

  2   client's life has been ruined by an over $1,000,000

  3   judgment when she did absolutely nothing wrong and

  4   there's absolutely no law to support the judgment.

  5               Fortunately, the Court is in a position

  6   today to rectify that, to hear something that it

  7   hasn't heard, to hear something under Rule 60 that

  8   it hasn't heard in neither this case nor in any

  9   prior proceeding.  I know the Court's aware of the

 10   facts, and I appreciate the Court reading the brief,

 11   but I would like to put some into the record, if I

 12   may.

 13               THE COURT:  Thank you, sir.

 14               MR. HAGUE:  Your Honor, you know that

 15   this case began on March 1st, 2007, when Plaintiff

 16   served a complaint on Ms. Fallini suing her for the

 17   death of her son after he got behind the wheel drunk

 18   and struck one of her cows on Highway SR-375.  I

 19   know this Court is also aware that Ms. Fallini is

 20   not an attorney.  She's over 60 years of age.  She's

 21   a rancher who has devoted her life to her family and

 22   her family's ranch.  She does things the good old

 23   fashion way, the way we wish everyone conducted

 24   themselves.

 25               She's trustworthy, she's dependent, and
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  1   her integrity means everything to her.  But again,

  2   she's not an expert on the law.  So what does she

  3   do?  What anyone else here would have done here

  4   today.  They would have hired a lawyer to represent

  5   them and to represent their interests.

  6               So she retained Harold Kuehn and

  7   essentially put her livelihood in his hands.  He did

  8   one thing right in this entire case.  He filed an

  9   answer on Ms. Fallini's behalf, and he asserted an

 10   affirmative defense under the Open Range Law that

 11   was contained directly in the brief.

 12               It listed the open range defense under

 13   Nevada Revised Statute 568.360, which expressly

 14   provides that those who own domestic animals do not

 15   have a duty to keep those animals off highways

 16   located on open range and are not liable for any

 17   damage or injury resulting from a collision between

 18   a motor vehicle and an animal on open range; in

 19   other words, a complete defense for Ms. Fallini as a

 20   matter of law.

 21               The answer was filed, but after that,

 22   Ms. Fallini's attorney jumped ship.  He completely

 23   abandoned her in her weakest moment.  But before he

 24   did that, he lied to her.  He said Ms. Fallini, the

 25   case is over, we've got this open range defense,
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  1   there's no law to support it, you're done.  But that

  2   didn't happen, Your Honor.

  3               Unbeknownst to Ms. Fallini, the case was

  4   not over.  Instead, what followed was a pattern of

  5   overzealousness and deceit on the part of opposing

  6   counsel.

  7               While Ms. Fallini's attorney was lost in

  8   space, litigation continued by way of fraudulent

  9   discovery requests and motion practiced by opposing

 10   counsel.  All of this was done without Ms. Fallini's

 11   knowledge.

 12               Your Honor, we have attached to our

 13   motion an accident report as Exhibit A that I don't

 14   know if the Court has seen up until now.  There are

 15   some relevant facts in there.  That the vehicle was

 16   speeding at almost 80 miles per hour, that the

 17   deceased was at fault, and that the deceased was

 18   driving under the influence of alcohol.  These are

 19   somewhat relevant, Your Honor.  But the most

 20   critical fact that's contained in that accident

 21   report and that is undisputed and which has never

 22   been disputed by Plaintiff's counsel is that the

 23   collision occurred on open range approximately seven

 24   miles past an open range warning sign.

 25               Since early 2007, Your Honor,
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  1   Plaintiff's counsel has had possession of this

  2   report and of this open range knowledge.  It is

  3   listed in Plaintiff's list of documents to be

  4   produced at trial.  We never saw it.  We obtained it

  5   this year on our own accord.

  6               This open range defense was also, of

  7   course, listed in Ms. Fallini's answer as an

  8   affirmative defense, which opposing counsel saw and

  9   signed off on the case conference report filed on

 10   October 23rd, 2007.  Now, Ms. Fallini's answer, I

 11   understand, Your Honor, is not necessarily

 12   conclusive, but Plaintiff's admissions are

 13   conclusive.

 14               Perhaps, another thing that this Court

 15   hasn't reviewed, and we didn't get until recently,

 16   was a memorial web page created by Plaintiff, which

 17   expressly provided that the accident occurred on

 18   open range.  I quote, "Mike died on the famous ET

 19   highway.  This is open range county and the cows

 20   have the right of way."  It goes so far as to cite

 21   articles and other statutes trying to fight against

 22   the open range so that when this may happen again,

 23   someone else might have a prayer out there in

 24   bringing a lawsuit.

 25               Opposing counsel never produced this web

1132



Transcription   -   8/13/2014
Estate of Michael David Adams, et al. vs. Susan Fallini, et al.

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 info@depointernational.com Page 11

  1   page either as part of the mandatory initial

  2   disclosure process or throughout any discovery.

  3   This website contains several determinative

  4   admissions.

  5               Furthermore, Your Honor, according to

  6   three affidavits filed in support of this motion,

  7   the area of Highway State 375 is and has been for

  8   many years open range, and anyone making a

  9   responsible and reasonable inquiry as to whether or

 10   not that stretch of highway is open range would find

 11   that it is.  There are 14 signs between where

 12   Mr. Adams drove his car to where he hit the cow that

 13   state it is open range.

 14               So despite all this, Your Honor, despite

 15   the unequivocal statements in the accident report,

 16   which again to date have never been challenged, as

 17   well as his client's own admissions to the contrary

 18   and without any evidentiary support or existing law

 19   on his side, opposing counsel sent a request to

 20   Ms. Fallini's attorney that included a request for

 21   Ms. Fallini to actually admit or perhaps lie that

 22   the accident did not occur on open range as set

 23   forth in the Open Range statute.

 24               Even more problematic is that this

 25   request came after Ms. Fallini's counsel repeatedly
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  1   neglected to attend hearings and respond to

  2   pleadings.  No one ever informed Ms. Fallini of this

  3   request.  In conflict with ethical rules, procedural

  4   rules, and equitable principles, opposing counsel

  5   absolutely sought admissions of known false facts;

  6   facts which have been false from day one, facts

  7   which have zero evidentiary support, facts which

  8   this Court has knowledge are simply untrue.

  9               And as the Court knows, Ms. Fallini, she

 10   didn't answer the request for admission.  She

 11   thought she was being represented by a competent

 12   lawyer who had her best interest in mind, but he

 13   didn't, and opposing counsel knew this.  No one ever

 14   informed Ms. Fallini that her counsel was not

 15   responding to any of the motions and other papers.

 16               And despite all of this, and despite

 17   Ms. Fallini's 100 percent statutory defense as a

 18   matter of law, Plaintiff's counsel then had the

 19   court enter partial summary judgment upon false

 20   facts, which it imposed liability on Ms. Fallini for

 21   the accident, the accident that everyone knew

 22   occurred on open range.

 23               Ms. Fallini was deemed to have admitted

 24   that it did not occur on open range under the

 25   statute.  It was not until three years after
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  1   Mr. Kuehn told Ms. Fallini the case was over and

  2   that she had prevailed that she learned the true

  3   status of her case, that she had been had.  That she

  4   had been worked over by the system that was designed

  5   to protect her constitutional rights.  In the

  6   meantime, Plaintiff sought default judgment based

  7   upon the order granting summary judgment which the

  8   Court granted.

  9               I don't know if the Court's aware of

 10   this or not, but Mr. Kuehn has since been suspended

 11   from practicing law.  But the tragedy here, Your

 12   Honor, is that he also lied to his malpractice

 13   insurance carrier.  So when Ms. Fallini had a 100

 14   percent cause of action against him for malpractice

 15   went to sue him, we found out that he had lied on

 16   all of his coverage, and so coverage was denied.

 17   This is Ms. Fallini's only remedy.  This is

 18   Ms. Fallini's last prayer to fight an over

 19   $1,000,000 judgment when she did nothing wrong.

 20               Your Honor, in addition to the

 21   fraudulent request for admission regarding the open

 22   range, Plaintiff's counsel fabricated in industry's

 23   practice in the request for admission that cattle in

 24   the area where the accident occurred are marked with

 25   reflective and luminescent tags.  Again, Ms. Fallini
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  1   didn't answer, and these absurd false requests were

  2   deemed admitted and used to support the motion for

  3   summary judgment.

  4               We filed three affidavits that are also

  5   attached to the motion of three experienced cattle

  6   ranchers who have been around this area for several

  7   years.  All of them have stated that this practice

  8   of attaching reflectors to cows is unheard of and a

  9   reasonable inquiry would indicate that marking cows

 10   with luminescent tags is absolutely not common

 11   practice.

 12               Your Honor, before I go into my argument

 13   stating the rules, it's important to note that in

 14   response to the motion filed, opposing counsel does

 15   absolutely nothing to rebut any of these factual

 16   allegations.  In fact, he doesn't even respond; he

 17   simply ignores them.  I suppose we should just deem

 18   these facts admitted.

 19               Your Honor, Rule 60(b) of the Nevada

 20   Rules of Civil Procedure expressly provides that the

 21   court may set aside a judgment for fraud upon the

 22   court.  Your Honor, the Supreme Court has made it

 23   very clear that there are no time limits on bringing

 24   this type of motion, and that makes perfect sense.

 25   No worthwhile interest is served in protecting such
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  1   a judgment.  A case of fraud upon the court calls

  2   into question the very legitimacy of the judgment

  3   that was obtained.

  4               Your Honor, courts have held that simple

  5   dishonesty of an attorney who is an officer of the

  6   court is so damaging on courts and litigants that it

  7   is considered fraud upon the court.  And courts have

  8   consistently held that an officer of the court

  9   perpetrates the fraud on the court, one, through an

 10   act that is calculated to mislead the court or, two,

 11   by failing to correct a misrepresentation or retract

 12   false evidence submitted to the court.  Opposing

 13   counsel is guilty of both.

 14               We have cited several cases from the

 15   Nevada Supreme Court in support of our argument.  In

 16   NC-DSH versus Garner, which is at 218 P.3d 853, a

 17   Nevada Supreme Court 2009 case, the Nevada Supreme

 18   Court found fraud upon the court when an attorney

 19   acted dishonestly.  The attorney made a fraudulent

 20   misrepresentation to the court by passing off a

 21   forged settlement agreement as genuine.  This was

 22   sufficient to find fraud.

 23               The court said that fraud can occur when

 24   a party is kept away from the court by such conduct

 25   as prevents a real trial upon the issues involved.
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  1               In another similar case, the Nevada

  2   Supreme Court found fraud upon the court when an

  3   attorney misknowingly represented testimony.  That's

  4   the Sierra Glass versus Viking case, 808 P.2d F12.

  5   That's a 1991 Nevada Supreme Court case.

  6               In Sierra, the attorney simply read a

  7   deposition into the record and omitted a portion to

  8   further his client's position.  The court reasoned

  9   that this behavior was nothing other than fraud upon

 10   the court, despite counsel's framing the behavior as

 11   clever lawyering and proficient advocacy.  The court

 12   held that any act which is calculated to mislead the

 13   tribunal in violation of Nevada Rule of Professional

 14   Conduct 3.3 is fraud on the court.

 15               Now, Rule 3.3, Your Honor, is quite

 16   simple.  It states, quote, "A lawyer shall not

 17   knowingly make a false statement of fact or law to a

 18   tribunal or fail to correct a false statement of

 19   material fact of law previously made to the tribunal

 20   by the lawyer, knowingly advancing false facts to

 21   the tribunal even if doing so through the guise of

 22   the discovery process is clearly fraud on the court

 23   and violates Rule 3.3."  But using the court

 24   processes to accomplish this is even more deplorable

 25   because it attempts to force the court to be a party
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  1   to the fraud.

  2               Plaintiff's counsel advanced falsehoods

  3   that, one, the use of luminescent tags on cattle is

  4   common practice to falsely prove negligence, and,

  5   two, that the accident did not occur in open range

  6   to avoid Ms. Fallini's absolute defense.  He

  7   confused the concepts of effective advocacy and

  8   fraud.

  9               More to the point, Your Honor, seeking

 10   admission of known false facts and then using those

 11   false facts to support a motion filed with the court

 12   is absolutely fraud upon the court.

 13               The Ninth Circuit has held that Rule

 14   36(a) serves two important goals, true seeking in

 15   litigation and efficiency in dispensing justice.

 16   But they also have said that it should not be used

 17   to harass the other side or in the hope that a

 18   party's adversary will simply concede essential

 19   elements.

 20               Recently, the Ninth Circuit faced an

 21   issue with admissions.  This is in McCollough v.

 22   Johnson, 637 F.3d 939.  This is a 2011 Ninth Circuit

 23   case.  It held that a plaintiff service of false

 24   request for admissions violated the Fair Debt

 25   Collection Practices Act as a matter of law.
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  1               I quote from their opinion.  "JRL's

  2   request for admission asked McCollough to admit

  3   facts that were not true."  That he had no defense,

  4   that every statement in the complaint was true, and

  5   that he had actually made a payment.  JRL had

  6   information in its possession that demonstrated the

  7   untruthfulness of the request of admissions.

  8               Accordingly, the court held that the

  9   service of these requests for admission containing

 10   false information constituted unfair,

 11   unconscionable, or false deceptive or misleading

 12   means to collect a debt.

 13               Now, Your Honor, the 11th Circuit has

 14   decided a case involving similar issues, and the

 15   11th Circuit case is Perez versus Miami-Dade.  It's

 16   297 F.3d 1255.  It's a 2002 case, but it's also been

 17   cited with approval by the Ninth Circuit in Conlon

 18   VUS, 474 F.3d 616.

 19               This case is interesting.  Mr. Perez was

 20   a police officer, and he got out of his car to chase

 21   some other suspects.  Another police car came around

 22   the corner and thought he was one of the bad guys

 23   and allegedly ran him over and crippled him.  So

 24   Mr. Perez sued the county.  He also sued the police

 25   officer.
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  1               His request for admissions had no

  2   evidentiary support and were simple regurgitations

  3   of what was set forth in the initial complaint.  One

  4   of the things he asked, Your Honor, in that case was

  5   for the county to admit that it had a practice of

  6   using unnecessary deadly force, but there was no

  7   factual proof at any time in the case that that was

  8   even a legitimate request.

  9               Furthermore, the county had already

 10   denied this exact request for admission in the

 11   complaint.  The county failed to respond to the

 12   requests.  They were deemed admitted.  Perez asked

 13   the court to strike the answers which contained all

 14   of the affirmative defenses able to withstand

 15   summary judgment.  The court did.

 16               Perez then filed for summary judgment

 17   and prevailed because of the deemed admissions.  So

 18   the county filed a motion to withdraw the request

 19   for admissions and filed a motion for

 20   reconsideration.  Both were denied by the district

 21   court.  It was overturned by the 11th court where it

 22   analyzed it under an abusive discretion standard.

 23               I quote, "We conclude with the comment

 24   on Rule 36 and Perez's use of requests for

 25   admissions in this case.  Essentially, Rule 36 is a
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  1   timesaver designed to expedite the trial and to

  2   relieve the parties of the cost-approving facts that

  3   will not be disputed at trial.  That is, when a

  4   party uses the rule to establish uncontested facts

  5   and to narrow the issues for trial, then the rule

  6   functions properly.  When a party like Perez,

  7   however, uses the rule to harass the other side or,

  8   as in this case, with the wild-eyed hope that the

  9   other side will fail to answer and therefore admit

 10   essential elements that the party has already denied

 11   in its answer, the rule's timesaving function

 12   creases.  The rule instead becomes a weapon,

 13   dragging out litigation and wasting valuable

 14   resources.  This is especially true here where the

 15   defendants had denied Perez's core allegations in

 16   the answers and again at a scheduling conference.

 17   Perez's continued service of the same request for

 18   admissions in the face of these denials was an abuse

 19   of Rule 36."

 20               Your Honor, our case is no different.

 21   It is more egregious.  Opposing counsel, despite his

 22   knowledge, the Court's knowledge, and his client's

 23   knowledge to the contrary, advanced false facts

 24   using the discovery process in a calculated attempt

 25   to mislead the Court and with the wild-eyed hope
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  1   that Ms. Fallini, particularly her non-responsive

  2   attorney, would fail to answer and therefore admit

  3   the inapplicability of an essential defense that

  4   Ms. Fallini had already set forth in her answer and

  5   at the scheduling conference.  Opposing counsel used

  6   the rule as a weapon, not a timesaving function.  He

  7   abused the Rules of Civil Procedure.

  8               He was in possession of the accident

  9   report as early as 2007.  It unequivocally provided

 10   that the accident occurred on open range.  He was in

 11   possession of Ms. Fallini's answer which contained

 12   the affirmative defense.  He had knowledge of his

 13   client's website which contained the admission.  In

 14   fact, he didn't even object, Your Honor, when this

 15   Court took judicial notice of the fact that the

 16   whole accident occurred on open range.  And despite

 17   all of this, Ms. Fallini was deemed to have admitted

 18   that the accident did not occur on open range.

 19               Again, this request for her to admit

 20   this came after Ms. Fallini's counsel had jumped

 21   ship.  When no one responded, opposing counsel used

 22   these false admitted facts in a pleading filed with

 23   the court.  Opposing counsel abused discovery

 24   process in a calculated maneuver to force fraudulent

 25   facts on this Court.  He has subverted the integrity
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  1   of the Court calling into question the very

  2   legitimacy of the judgment.

  3               Your Honor, this is not clever lawyering

  4   or proficient advocacy.  It is nothing other than

  5   fraud on the Court.  That is not the purpose of the

  6   Rules of Civil Procedure.  The rules were designed

  7   to -- the rules were not designed to manufacture

  8   claims and facts and then use those artificial

  9   claims to blindside opposing parties and deceive the

 10   Court.

 11               The Sierra Glass court put it plainly.

 12   "An act which is calculated to mislead the tribunal

 13   is not clever lawyering and proficient advocacy.  It

 14   is nothing other than fraud on the court."

 15               Your Honor, I have found no cases where

 16   a court took judicial notice of an essential fact in

 17   direct contradiction of a deemed admitted fact that

 18   then formed the basis for prevailing on summary

 19   judgment.  I find this troubling because this

 20   clearly highlights the inability of the court to

 21   perform in the usual manner its impartial task.  As

 22   Your Honor knows, to obtain summary judgment, one

 23   must show that no material facts are in dispute and

 24   that they're entitled to judgment as a matter of

 25   law.
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  1               The Court essentially took notice that

  2   two plus two equals four, but then agreed with

  3   Plaintiff that two plus two equals five as a matter

  4   of law.  That is not how the system should work.

  5   Just like the open range issue, the Court knows,

  6   Plaintiff knows, opposing counsel knows and we know

  7   that two plus two is four.  Nothing should be able

  8   to change this.  Requests for admissions are not

  9   weapons designed to strip away the truth.  Opposing

 10   counsel forced the Court to pronounce a clear lie

 11   that the accident was not in open range when it

 12   entered the motion for summary judgment and the

 13   order that he prepared.

 14               In further support of opposing counsel's

 15   fraud upon the Court, Plaintiff's counsel willfully

 16   ignored his obligations under Rule 11.  By signing

 17   the complaint that he filed on behalf of Plaintiff

 18   as well as the motion for summary judgment that was

 19   filed, opposing counsel certified that to the best

 20   of his knowledge, information and belief formed

 21   after reasonable inquiry the allegations and other

 22   factual contentions had evidentiary support or were

 23   likely to have evidentiary support after a

 24   reasonable opportunity for further investigation or

 25   discovery.
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  1               Your Honor, where is the evidentiary

  2   support?  There is none.  In fact, the only evidence

  3   is evidence that goes directly against Plaintiff's

  4   false contentions.  He was in possession of the

  5   accident report which stated it had occurred on open

  6   range.  That was a complete defense to Ms. -- to

  7   Plaintiff's complaint.  The Plaintiff's website

  8   admitted it was on open range, again providing her

  9   with a complete defense.

 10               Finally, as indicated in the attached

 11   affidavits to our motion, a simple call to the

 12   applicable regulatory agency or just a drive through

 13   the area where the accident occurred would have

 14   provided Counsel with the simple truth that the

 15   accident was on open range and that there was a 100

 16   percent statutory defense.

 17               He not only failed to perform a

 18   reasonable inquiry before filing the complaint and

 19   the motion for summary judgment, he ignored his

 20   client's own admissions and other evidence that made

 21   the suit and the motion for summary judgment 100

 22   percent frivolous.

 23               This is also a violation of Rule 3.1 of

 24   the Rules of Professional Conduct, which provides

 25   that a lawyer shall not assert an issue unless there
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  1   is a basis in law and fact for doing so that is not

  2   frivolous.  Again, Your Honor, the accident report,

  3   the website, the famousness of the ET Highway where

  4   the accident occurred, and a simple inquiry to the

  5   applicable agency all clearly indicate that the

  6   accident happened on open range.

  7               Further, Plaintiff's counsel advanced

  8   luminescent tagging as common practice, which is

  9   another falsehood relied upon by the Court to find

 10   Ms. Fallini liable.  There can be no doubt that

 11   Plaintiff's counsel knew that these assertions were

 12   false.

 13               Plaintiff's counsel was obligated to

 14   accept known facts pursuant to Professional Conduct

 15   and Civil Procedure Rules while advocating

 16   zealously, but he, instead, sidestepped those

 17   obligations as an officer of the court and forced

 18   fraudulent facts on the Court by seeking an

 19   admission that the allegations were true even though

 20   they were absolutely false.

 21               Now, even assuming, Your Honor, for the

 22   sake of argument, that these facts were not known

 23   from the outset, which is simply not true, an

 24   attorney who fails to correct a misrepresentation or

 25   retract false evidence at any time during the case
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  1   commits fraud upon the court.  In Sierra Glass, the

  2   court reasoned that perhaps the most egregious

  3   action that opposing counsel took was their failure

  4   to correct the misstatement once it was brought to

  5   their attention.

  6               In our case, Your Honor, opposing

  7   counsel failed on multiple occasions to correct the

  8   misrepresentations of material fact.  He asserted

  9   that Michael was legally driving, despite holding

 10   evidence to the contrary, that the deceased was at

 11   fault, that he was speeding, and that he was drunk.

 12   All of this was in the undisputed accident report

 13   and death report, but it was never brought to the

 14   Court's attention.  No corrections were made.

 15   Holding the contradicting accident report and having

 16   no evidence to support his assertions, opposing

 17   counsel thought it clever lawyering and proficient

 18   advocacy to mislead this tribunal concerning

 19   material facts that would otherwise, provide

 20   Ms. Fallini a perfect defense.  He manufactured

 21   false evidence using the discovery process, and he

 22   took affirmative steps to forward this fraud by

 23   counseling his clients to deactivate the memorial

 24   website for her son and then produce requests for

 25   admissions for my client to admit that it never
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  1   happened on open range.  He even failed to retract

  2   his statements after the Court took judicial notice

  3   that this occurred on open range.

  4               Your Honor, my client, who is now in her

  5   60s, and who has labored her entire life to support

  6   her family and provide them with security should not

  7   be punished because of opposing counsel's lies and

  8   her attorney's ineptness.  She did nothing wrong.

  9   It's not fair, it's not what the judicial system is

 10   about, and it is simply not right to deprive

 11   Ms. Fallini of due process.  It needs to be

 12   corrected.  There is no doubt that fraud was

 13   committed upon the Court, and Rule 60 allows the

 14   Court to remediate this fraud by setting aside the

 15   judgment and it should.

 16               Your Honor, the second part of the

 17   argument that I've set forth in the brief deals with

 18   Rule 60(b)(1), which this Court is very familiar

 19   with, likely.  It's where there's mistake,

 20   inadvertent surprise or excusable neglect.  That one

 21   has a six-month time period.

 22               Fraud upon the Court can be looked at

 23   three, four, five years after it occurred because as

 24   the Supreme Court has held, we do not like to ever

 25   entertain the idea that fraud has been committed
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  1   upon the court and so we allow judges to revisit

  2   that at any time.

  3               The 60(b)(1) argument, Your Honor, is

  4   separate from fraud upon the court.  That one has a

  5   six-month time period.  We believe we're also within

  6   our right to bring that motion under 60(b)(1) as

  7   well for inadvertent surprise and excusable neglect.

  8   The reason is, is because there's a new judgment.

  9   The old judgment is void.  The Supreme Court

 10   remanded, you entered a new order still making

 11   Ms. Fallini liable for over a $1,000,000, but it's a

 12   new order.  We have filed a motion within our

 13   six-month time frame.

 14               The Supreme Court of Nevada has

 15   established guidelines where the courts can analyze

 16   a claim under 60(b)(1).  It simply needs to analyze

 17   whether the movement promptly applied to remove the

 18   judgment, lack the intent to delay the proceedings,

 19   demonstrate a good faith, and lack knowledge of

 20   procedural requirements.  Ms. Fallini meets these

 21   elements.

 22               Your Honor, if there was ever a case

 23   where excusable neglect was present it is this one.

 24   All Ms. Fallini is asking for is to have her day in

 25   court.  She objected promptly.  There's no evidence

1150



Transcription   -   8/13/2014
Estate of Michael David Adams, et al. vs. Susan Fallini, et al.

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 info@depointernational.com Page 29

  1   to suggest that Ms. Fallini filed any motions to

  2   unnecessarily delay or prolong the matter.  The

  3   record contains no indicia of bad faith on

  4   Ms. Fallini's part.  And, as the Court knows and as

  5   I've exhausted, she has several meritorious

  6   defenses, in fact, complete 100 percent defenses as

  7   a matter of law.

  8               So the only remaining issue is was there

  9   excusable neglect, inadvertence, or surprise?

 10   Clearly, there was.  We cited a couple cases in our

 11   brief, Your Honor, and it's astounding how many

 12   cases are less severe than Ms. Fallini's, yet the

 13   defaults have been set aside without any question by

 14   the court.

 15               We cited Stachel v. Weaver, 655 P.2d

 16   518.  In that case, the attorney failed to respond

 17   to interrogatories and other discovery requests.  He

 18   left his client high and dry.  Plaintiff got a

 19   default judgment.  The Supreme Court set it aside

 20   and said, "Where a client is unknowingly deprived of

 21   effective representation by counsel's failure to

 22   serve process to appear at the pretrial conference,

 23   to communicate with the court, client and other

 24   counsel and the action is dismissed by reason of the

 25   attorney's misrepresentation, the client will not be
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  1   charged with responsibility for the misconduct of

  2   nominal counsel of record."

  3               So what makes this case any different?

  4   Why are we going to charge Ms. Fallini with the

  5   responsibility of the misconduct of her inept

  6   counsel who is suspended from practicing law and who

  7   has no malpractice insurance?

  8               We also cited a case called Passarelli,

  9   which is instructive.  In that case, the attorney

 10   was the victim of substance abuse and allowed his

 11   practice to disintegrate.  The court had to decide

 12   whether the conduct of defendant's counsel should be

 13   imputed to defendant.  The court said no, it would

 14   be improper.

 15               I quote from the Supreme Court of

 16   Nevada, "Counsel's failure to meet his professional

 17   obligations constitutes excusable neglect.

 18   Defendant was effectually and unknowingly deprived

 19   of legal representation."  So the court determined

 20   it would be unfair to impute such conduct to

 21   defendant and thereby deprive him of a full trial on

 22   the merits.

 23               So I ask again, how is Ms. Fallini's

 24   case any different?  Why would the court in

 25   Passarelli say that it would be unfair to impute the
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  1   attorney's conduct to defendant, but it would be

  2   fair to do so to Ms. Fallini in this case,

  3   especially when a trial on the merits would

  4   absolutely change the outcome of the case?

  5               Mr. Kuehn's conduct was outrageous.  He

  6   was a liar, he abandoned his client completely, and

  7   he has no malpractice insurance.  Why are we going

  8   to punish Ms. Fallini?  She didn't know he was

  9   incompetent and shirking his duties as a lawyer.

 10   She didn't know he would leave her high and dry.

 11   She trusted him.  She trusted the system.

 12               If he simply answered the request for

 13   admission with a deny, we wouldn't even be here

 14   today.  The case would have been over, ruled in

 15   favor of Ms. Fallini.  That's why we have Rule 60.

 16               In short, Your Honor, the undenied,

 17   undisputed material facts clearly show that opposing

 18   counsel knew the accident was on open range,

 19   advanced the fake industry standard to show

 20   negligence, purposefully and calculatingly misled

 21   this tribunal, failed to correct or unwind his

 22   scheme at multiple and necessary and opportune

 23   instances, manipulated and withheld evidence to

 24   further his scheme, and did all this when

 25   Ms. Fallini had zero representation and no knowledge
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  1   whatsoever of the status of her case and opposing

  2   counsel's deceptive strategy to obtain Plaintiff's

  3   judgment.

  4               The Court must set aside the judgment,

  5   and it has clear grounds to do so under Rule 60(b)

  6   because opposing counsel committed fraud upon the

  7   Court.  And it has clear grounds to do so for the

  8   excusable neglect provision of Rule 60.

  9               Your Honor, let's not punish a

 10   67-year-old woman for the mistake of her attorney or

 11   for the fraud committed on the Court by opposing

 12   counsel.  If this Court can tell me one thing that

 13   Ms. Fallini did wrong in this case, I would love to

 14   hear it.  If anyone can tell me one thing that

 15   Ms. Fallini has done wrong in this case, I'd love to

 16   hear it.  What law did she break?  What did she do

 17   wrong?

 18               I could testify under oath, Your Honor,

 19   that I have spoken with over 50 lawyers, judges and

 20   practitioners about this case.

 21               THE COURT:  You can't think of one thing

 22   she did wrong?

 23               MR. HAGUE:  There's not one thing she

 24   did wrong.

 25               THE COURT:  She relied on Mr. Kuehn.
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  She relied on Mr. Kuehn.

  2   That's right.  She did.  And fortunately, the

  3   Supreme Court has said that we're not going to

  4   impute that type of shoddy lawyer (indiscernible).

  5               THE COURT:  I didn't mean to get you off

  6   your thing.

  7               MR. HAGUE:  No.

  8               THE COURT:  It just stood out at me.

  9               MR. HAGUE:  The case, Your Honor, is

 10   shocking.  And I'm not saying it's the Court's fault

 11   at all.  I think what's happened in this case is

 12   what I've seen happen all over jurisdictions in

 13   state courts where you rely on what goes before you

 14   and you stamp things.  And I understand you read

 15   them, but this was a complex case, attorneys were

 16   not showing up for court, and you relied on opposing

 17   counsel's representations, but they were false.

 18               Ms. Fallini had a 100 percent defense.

 19   I couldn't sue the court, I couldn't sue the judge

 20   and then say, admit that you don't have judicial

 21   immunity.  You always have judicial immunity.  She

 22   always had that defense.  It needs to be rectified

 23   today, Your Honor.

 24               Do you have any questions for me?

 25               THE COURT:  I might have after
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  1   Mr. Aldrich speaks.

  2               MR. HAGUE:  Okay.  Thank you.

  3               THE COURT:  Thank you.

  4               MR. ALDRICH:  Good morning, Your Honor.

  5               THE COURT:  Good morning.

  6               MR. ALDRICH:  That is difficult to

  7   listen to.  To stand there and listen to my

  8   integrity be questioned like that over and over

  9   again by someone who does not know me is very

 10   difficult.  I will say that I do appreciate the fact

 11   that Mr. Ohlson didn't come in here and say all that

 12   garbage about me.

 13               I don't even know where to start, but

 14   you know, I think that it's interesting to me, you

 15   go to court and you have these sayings that come up.

 16   And one of the sayings is when the facts are on your

 17   side, argue the facts.  When the law's on your side,

 18   argue the law.

 19               Well, apparently, when the facts and the

 20   law aren't on your side, what you do is you attack

 21   opposing counsel, and, oh, by the way, let's attack

 22   the judge, too, and say he doesn't know what he's

 23   doing or he's biased or whatever else we can do.

 24   And then let's see if maybe it's an election year,

 25   we can bring in a whole bunch of friends to try and
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  1   exert a little pressure.

  2               But I will say I'm glad that

  3   Mrs. Fallini's decided to appear now and contest

  4   something so maybe we can get this thing going

  5   forward.  But I want to touch on a few things here

  6   and clarify the record a little bit.  I know

  7   Mr. Hague is new to the case or somewhat new to the

  8   case.

  9               Now, the police report that they

 10   attached, I don't know for sure where that came

 11   from.  It's different than the one I had, my

 12   recollection.  Not sure it matters.  Actually, I

 13   know it doesn't matter because the evidentiary part

 14   of this case happened four years ago, and the Court

 15   remembers that.  You were here, I was here,

 16   Mr. Ohlson was here.

 17               We had a default judgment hearing.  My

 18   clients came and testified.  And the Court, even

 19   though default judgment had been entered but the

 20   amount hadn't yet, the Court let Mr. Ohlson

 21   cross-examine my clients.  I recall that very

 22   clearly as well.

 23               But let's back up for a second because

 24   what's happened in this case is that we handled it

 25   exactly how we were supposed to handle it from the
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  1   very start.  I did not push this case through really

  2   fast, like you might try.  Sometimes I have clients

  3   come in and go, oh, maybe they won't answer, we'll

  4   hurry and push through a default judgment.

  5               Unfortunately, I didn't anticipate quite

  6   so much that was not in the pleading and I didn't

  7   bring the entire record, but the Court is well

  8   aware.  I sent requests for admission like you're

  9   supposed to do, by the way, for efficiency and to

 10   clarify what the issues were going to be.  Months

 11   and months later -- I apologize, I don't know

 12   exactly, but my recollection is nine months later I

 13   brought a motion for partial summary judgment.

 14               At that time, that motion for partial

 15   judgment was based on those requests for admission

 16   because it took care of the liability issues in the

 17   case.  That was not opposed by Mr. Kuehn.  And by

 18   the way, you're right.  That is mistake number one

 19   that Mrs. Fallini made.  That's the first one.

 20               The second one, interestingly enough,

 21   one of the Fallinis has gotten the press interested

 22   in this, and there was an article that contained

 23   some portion related to this case in the Las Vegas

 24   Review Journal recently.  In that article, my

 25   recollection is it said that the Fallinis have been
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  1   involved in 31 cases, and that they've won 30 of

  2   those cases except this one here.

  3               Now, Counsel comes in today and tries to

  4   make Mrs. Fallini seem like the victim, non-savvy,

  5   doesn't know what's going on, no idea what was going

  6   on.  If you're in 31 cases, you're smart enough to

  7   ask that question, when you're lawyer says this case

  8   is over, great, send me the pleading that says it's

  9   over.  So there's another mistake right there.

 10   Okay?  And, by the way, if he sent her a pleading

 11   that said it was over, that's not my doing, but I've

 12   never seen that.

 13               Now, I guess I got off into the facts

 14   because there was so much here, and I got a little

 15   irritated what was being said about me.

 16               THE COURT:  Do you need a recess to

 17   gather your thoughts today?

 18               MR. ALDRICH:  Oh, no.  I'm good.

 19               THE COURT:  All right.

 20               MR. ALDRICH:  I'm on a roll now.  This

 21   really should be stricken.  That's where we should

 22   start.  This should be stricken, and they should not

 23   be able to just continue to bring motions in with

 24   all this stuff.  But let's just take a second.

 25   I attached it to my pleading, but, you know, this
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  1   issue was raised in the motion for reconsideration

  2   on the default judgment four years ago that I was

  3   committing fraud on the Court and made

  4   misrepresentations to the Court.  That was denied.

  5               Then it went up on appeal.  That was

  6   addressed in the appellate brief, which I also

  7   attached.  It starts on page 12 about how I made all

  8   these alleged misrepresentations to the Court.

  9   That's addressed.

 10               The Supreme Court has looked at this

 11   issue and said, sorry, you lose.  I did not make

 12   misrepresentations to the Court.  The Court was well

 13   aware of everything that happened in this case.

 14   And the Court will recall, after summary judgment

 15   was granted, just the partial summary judgment, I

 16   was trying to get more information through

 17   discovery.  I brought motions to compel after

 18   motions to compel.  Mr. Kuehn came to some of those

 19   hearings, the Court will recall.

 20               In fact, lest anyone think that Your

 21   Honor was not giving proper -- what's the right

 22   term?  Well, wasn't being fair, I drove back out

 23   here several times because the Court gave Mr. Kuehn

 24   additional time to provide the documents he was

 25   supposed to provide.
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  1               I moved for sanctions.  I drove back out

  2   here.  Mr. Kuehn showed up in some, sorry, I'll get

  3   you the information.  Your Honor, gave him 30 more

  4   days but did impose a sanction if he didn't do it in

  5   30 days.  Wasn't done in 30 days.

  6               I brought another motion for sanctions.

  7   I got that granted because it either wasn't opposed

  8   or the information wasn't provided.  This went on

  9   and on and on.

 10               I did not push this through in a hurry

 11   trying to pull the wool over anybody's eyes.  That

 12   isn't what happened.  Motion for summary judgment

 13   was granted.  It was not opposed.

 14               So we get the admissions, those count,

 15   and those facts are admitted.  By the way, we went

 16   through that.  Supreme Court brief, we won.  They

 17   said, you've deemed those admitted, those are your

 18   facts, which brings me back to in the motion for

 19   partial summary judgment, I didn't make any

 20   representations to the Court about those facts.

 21   Those are the Defendant's facts.  Okay?  I didn't

 22   come in here and say, Your Honor, this is where it

 23   happened.  It was or wasn't open range.

 24   I presented to Your Honor requests for admission

 25   that were deemed admitted by Plaintiff.  Those
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  1   aren't my facts.  And Your Honor was well aware of

  2   that, and I was completely aboveboard the entire

  3   time on that.

  4               So anyway, so this has already been in

  5   front of the Supreme Court.  This really should be

  6   stricken, and the Court really shouldn't even

  7   consider it.  But if the Court wants to consider it,

  8   we'll just keep going.

  9               Now, interesting that, you know, the

 10   conversation is oh, Mr. -- sorry -- Hague, is

 11   perplexed and confused about this case somehow.

 12   Well, I'm perplexed and confused, too, and we just

 13   keep coming back on the same stuff, and I'm patient,

 14   I've handled it here, and I've handled it there.

 15               And, you know, yes, we have tried to

 16   execute, and we're trying to chase that money down,

 17   and we're finding out all kinds of fun stuff about

 18   where the money's going.  And that's just going to

 19   lead to more litigation.  That's not really for here

 20   today.  But again, we're back to saying, oh, she's a

 21   victim, not savvy.  She's absolutely savvy.  She's

 22   dumping cash left and right, but that's for another

 23   day.

 24               Let's see.  Some comments here about he

 25   said he was scratching his head.  I can provide
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  1   whatever part of the record Mr. Hague needs to not

  2   have to scratch his head anymore on this case

  3   because it's all very clear.  I was very careful

  4   about how I approached it.  Your Honor was very

  5   careful about how you approached it.

  6               And by the way, here we go again,

  7   Supreme Court already said, yep, what you did was

  8   right.  Yes.  They reduced the amount on the

  9   judgment.  Okay.  Whatever.  I lived with that.

 10   Okay?

 11               In fact, Mr. Ohlson and I had some

 12   dispute, the Court may recall, about the amount of

 13   that judgment, the modified judgment, amended

 14   judgment, whatever we want to call it.  And

 15   ultimately, we just said whatever, we'll quit

 16   fighting about it, and we accepted the amount that

 17   they put in that judgment.

 18               Let's see.  I will say this.  Listening

 19   to how deceitful I was and all those allegations, I

 20   would invite anybody to contact any opposing counsel

 21   on any case I've ever been involved in and ask if I

 22   have ever been deceitful in any way in any case.

 23               All right.  A couple other things.  I'm

 24   not sure.  There was an assertion about this

 25   memorial web page and how I advised my client to
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  1   take it down or something.  I actually know nothing

  2   about the web page.  I may have seen it before.

  3   I've not told my client to do anything with the web

  4   page.  It all is what it is.  This is all red

  5   herring.

  6               You can't come in after judgment's been

  7   entered, after an appeal has already been done and

  8   affirmed and come in and present new evidence.  You

  9   just can't do it.  Where's the finality, which is

 10   back to why really it should just be stricken in the

 11   first place.

 12               I'm sorry.  Let me just check my notes.

 13   I want to try and cover --

 14               THE COURT:  You know what?

 15               MR. ALDRICH:  -- what needs to be

 16   covered.

 17               THE COURT:  You don't want me to, but

 18   I'm going to let you get your thoughts in order

 19   because I have to go to the bathroom.

 20               MR. ALDRICH:  Fair enough.

 21               THE COURT:  So we're going to take a

 22   short recess, let you get your thoughts in order,

 23   come back, you can finish up.  We'll hear from you

 24   again, and then I'll let you know.

 25               MR. ALDRICH:  Great.  Thank you.
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  1               THE COURT:  Short recess.

  2               THE MARSHAL:  All rise.

  3               (Court recessed at 11:06 a.m. until

  4   11:22 a.m.)

  5               THE COURT:  All right, Counsel.  Let's

  6   go ahead.  And, Mr. Aldrich, we'll ask you to

  7   continue your argument.

  8               MR. ALDRICH:  I thank you, Your Honor.

  9   I will try to be brief, as I know the Court's

 10   already heard quite a bit from me.  So let me just

 11   go back.

 12               So this has already been decided by the

 13   Supreme Court.  That's the most important part.  It

 14   went up on appeal and went back.

 15               Now, interestingly enough, while that

 16   was -- appeal was pending, Mrs. Fallini sued me

 17   personally and Your Honor in Tonopah, and made

 18   similar allegations.  The ones against me were that

 19   I made allegations that were false, misleading, have

 20   no evidentiary support in violation of Nevada law,

 21   and on and on and on, and that Your Honor accepted

 22   those knowing they were false, and on and on and on.

 23               And so I sat at my desk for a while, did

 24   a motion to dismiss, drove on up to Tonopah one day

 25   and got that thing dismissed.  It was dismissed
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  1   against Your Honor as well.  And so now it's been

  2   litigated in front of the Supreme Court.  It's been

  3   litigated in front of a separate court, albeit in

  4   this judicial district, I believe.  So it's been

  5   handled twice.

  6               Now we're back here talking about the

  7   same stuff again, and it's already been decided,

  8   pick one, whether it's the Supreme Court or the

  9   other district court.  I'm good either way because

 10   it's already been decided.

 11               Now back to -- well, then -- okay.  So

 12   then we got the series of rulings that Mrs. Fallini

 13   doesn't like.  So then they came back and moved to

 14   disqualify Your Honor, raising essentially the same

 15   issues that we already litigated up in Tonopah.  And

 16   so that was denied, and now we're here.

 17               With regard to the motion for summary

 18   judgment, I just want to touch on it way back when.

 19   No facts were in dispute.  And when you're entitled

 20   to judgment as a matter of law, you're supposed to

 21   get summary judgment.  And on the facts that we had

 22   in the case at the time, and the fact, by the way,

 23   there was no opposition, the law says we win summary

 24   judgment, which is what Your Honor granted and what

 25   we -- the relief we obtained, all aboveboard.
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  1               Now, we look at Rule 60(b) which is,

  2   when it comes down to it, ultimately what we're here

  3   to talk about today, and the wording of 60(b) --

  4   sorry.  My iPad is not cooperating.  But Rule 60(b)

  5   allows to set aside for mistake, inadvertence,

  6   surprise or excusable neglect.  We've already

  7   litigated, actually, the excusable neglect part of

  8   it.

  9               The Court is well aware that there's no

 10   mistake here.  There's no surprise here.  Okay?

 11   There's no inadvertence going on here.

 12               The second problem there is newly

 13   discovered evidence which by due diligence could not

 14   have been discovered in time to move for a new trial

 15   under Rule 59(b).  What we got today attached to the

 16   pleading that we're here to talk about today is a

 17   police report which, again, it's got more

 18   information on it than I've ever seen before.  Not

 19   authenticated, by the way, but nonetheless, I don't

 20   have a reason to dispute it or not.  I don't need to

 21   for today's purposes, but to argue that that could

 22   not have been discovered at some point in the past

 23   is ridiculous.

 24               And by the way, remember, the Court

 25   addressed all these issues four years ago.  Okay.
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  1   That's what the default judgment was entered.

  2   That's when the evidence should have been presented.

  3   Well, long before that, but nonetheless.  So that

  4   one doesn't apply.  Then, fraud.  I've already had

  5   my say on the fraud issue, so there's no reason to

  6   set it aside.

  7               Again, there's no -- you can't come in

  8   after it's been up on appeal and been upheld and

  9   say, okay, now I have some evidence I want to

 10   present.  You just can't do it.  And I'm not

 11   required to come in here and conduct discovery or

 12   prove or disprove or anything else because I've

 13   already won, and I won on appeal.

 14               So my last comment here is imagine a

 15   system where when we get a judgment, whether it's a

 16   default judgment after a prove-up hearing like we

 17   had here or, heaven forbid, one of those eight or

 18   nine-month trials.  All right.  And then we go

 19   fishing through the record and say, oh, I didn't

 20   like this and I didn't like that.

 21               And after it's up on appeal and comes

 22   back we start going -- and going, oh, but the

 23   lawyer, he said something I didn't like.  He

 24   shouldn't have said that.  It's his fault.  And we

 25   come back to it and say, you know what, yeah; that
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  1   guy's a bad guy, go try that case again.  I know you

  2   already won on appeal.  I know it was five years

  3   ago, but do it again.  That's absurd.  There has to

  4   be finality.  And there has to be finality here in

  5   this instance.

  6               So my request to the Court is that -- my

  7   real request is that the motion be stricken, to

  8   begin with.  But I understand there's been a lot

  9   raised.  And if the Court wants to consider it,

 10   that's fine.  Consider it.  But you still have to

 11   deny it because there's no basis to set this

 12   judgment aside.

 13               Oh, and the last thing I forgot to

 14   mention.  This little six-month thing, the judgment

 15   was entered four years ago.  The Supreme Court

 16   modified that the amount is now less than it was.

 17   That is true.  But these bases for trying to set it

 18   aside should have been asserted sometime within the

 19   six months after it was done four years ago, not

 20   after the Supreme Court had sent it back, upheld it,

 21   and then it was entered from there.

 22               THE COURT:  Let me have you address one

 23   -- the main point he made.  The main point he made

 24   was that you submitted a request for admissions that

 25   this is open range -- that this is not open range
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  1   knowing that it's open range.  And that was the main

  2   argument he made for a while.  How do you address

  3   that?

  4               MR. ALDRICH:  Well, interestingly

  5   enough, I've never been out there, and I don't know

  6   that it's open range, me personally.  I did not go

  7   investigate whether it was open range.  I didn't

  8   file the complaint.  Mr. Ackerman filed the

  9   complaint.  I took over the case after that.  I have

 10   not been out there.  I will candidly tell the Court

 11   that.  Requests for admission are there to, as he

 12   said, clarify and help have efficiency.  That is why

 13   I sent it out.

 14               Now, interestingly enough, I've only

 15   been practicing here 15 years.  I do personal injury

 16   litigation, I do a lot of commercial litigation, and

 17   I do labor -- a lot of labor litigation.  Okay?  I

 18   get request for admissions in many, many cases that

 19   have requests for, you know, admit this fact -- that

 20   is it a fact in dispute?  And it happens all the

 21   time.  Okay?

 22               But the Court will recall -- and I

 23   didn't bring this briefing because we've already

 24   briefed it.  But I've presented to this Court and up

 25   on appeal the law on Rule 36 and the law that says
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  1   -- the rule says if you don't answer in 30 days,

  2   it's deemed admitted.

  3               And the case law that I cited to this

  4   Court and to the Nevada Supreme Court on that issue

  5   actually says something to the effect of they are

  6   deemed admitted even if they are ultimately proven

  7   to be false, okay, or it turns out that those facts

  8   are false.  That's what they're there for.

  9               THE COURT:  Let's take it to the next

 10   step, then.  I understand that what you're saying is

 11   it's quite common out in the legal community when

 12   you submit your request for admissions to submit

 13   things that everybody may know that that's not true

 14   or that the guy's going to respond and say -- so,

 15   for example, there's an accident, and you say to the

 16   other guy admit that you weren't drunk and so forth.

 17   And you know he wasn't, but you're just asking

 18   because it's normal to ask for the admissions of the

 19   obvious things.  This case would be one where you're

 20   saying, well, just admit that it was an open range,

 21   and Kuehn doesn't respond.

 22               Now, I'm not saying you committed fraud

 23   on the Court when you submitted your standard

 24   admissions.  Fine.  Okay.  You submitted it.  Just

 25   admit that it was all your fault and Kuehn doesn't
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  1   respond.  You know, oh, I -- he's saying, okay,

  2   well, maybe the next step was fraud, which is you

  3   coming into court and saying give me my motion for

  4   summary judgment because it's deemed admitted, Kuehn

  5   didn't respond, Kuehn admitted that it's not open

  6   range.  And he's saying but at that point you should

  7   have said, well, Judge, he admitted this, but it

  8   really isn't open -- it is open range.

  9               And so what's your response to that?

 10   He's putting the duty on you to admit something that

 11   Kuehn didn't admit.

 12               MR. ALDRICH:  I have two responses.  One

 13   is this issue's already been up to the Supreme Court

 14   and come back.

 15               THE COURT:  I know it has.

 16               MR. ALDRICH:  Okay?  My second response

 17   is that is not my representation to the Court.  Your

 18   Honor was well aware what the basis for my motion

 19   for summary judgment was.  It was requests for

 20   admission that were admitted by the Defendant.  They

 21   were not my representations.  I represented to the

 22   Court that I --

 23               THE COURT:  So you're --

 24               MR. ALDRICH:  -- sent them out.

 25               THE COURT:  -- saying you didn't have a
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  1   duty to correct Kuehn's error?

  2               MR. ALDRICH:  No.  I don't have a duty

  3   to correct his error and it's -- the admission is

  4   deemed admitted.  That's what the law says.  It is a

  5   fact that is admitted.  It's not my fact.  It's the

  6   Defendant's fact.  Okay?  I ask it because I want to

  7   know -- it's like any discovery.  I want to know

  8   what the Defendant is going to say about X, Y and Z.

  9   That's why I ask.

 10               And then what happens is they either

 11   admit it or deny it.  And on the stuff they deny, I

 12   go do more work.  Right?  On the stuff they admit,

 13   because it's there for efficiency, I don't have to

 14   do any more work.

 15               But how in the world is it my duty to

 16   come in and say, well, her lawyer screwed up?  What

 17   about my duty to my client who has asked me to

 18   prosecute her case on her behalf?  Right?  I have a

 19   duty to zealously represent her, which I did, and

 20   I've done it exactly how you're supposed to do it.

 21   And the Supreme Court has agreed that I did it

 22   exactly how you're supposed to do it.

 23               THE COURT:  You talked about the fact

 24   that it's outside the six-month mark regarding the

 25   excusable neglect argument.  Is there any estoppel
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  1   for this argument to be raised and for me to rule in

  2   their favor and send it up to the Supremes because

  3   this argument should have been raised or was raised

  4   four years ago, three years ago, two years ago --

  5   could have raised it to the Supremes, should have

  6   raised it, should have argued it?  Maybe they did.

  7   It's all been done.  Does that stop this argument in

  8   any way that they could have argued this fraud a

  9   year ago and didn't?

 10               MR. ALDRICH:  Well, I mean, I think they

 11   should be estopped from arguing it because they've

 12   already argued it.  They've argued it here in front

 13   of Your Honor.  They've argued it in front of the

 14   Supreme Court, and they've argued it in Tonopah in

 15   front of somebody else.

 16               THE COURT:  Are they allowed to keep

 17   arguing it in front of --

 18               MR. ALDRICH:  No.  I don't think --

 19               THE COURT:  -- them?

 20               MR. ALDRICH:  -- that they are.  I think

 21   they should be estopped.  I mean, there's not a

 22   waiver argument there because they've already made

 23   the argument.  Estoppel, I mean, yeah, I think at

 24   some point they have to stop.  And ultimately, down

 25   the road, I will bring a motion to address that
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  1   issue, that they keep bringing the same motion

  2   again, if I have to.

  3               But sure, I think that there's an

  4   estoppel argument there, too.  But I will be candid,

  5   I do not want to go up to another appeal.  There's

  6   not a reason to go to another appeal.  It's done.

  7   That's what they're trying to do, I understand.

  8   But this is clear.  This motion -- I -- again, it

  9   should really just be stricken but easily just

 10   denied because it's been considered by this Court,

 11   by the Nevada Supreme Court, by another court up in

 12   Tonopah.

 13               THE COURT:  Thank you, sir.  Anything

 14   else you want to add?

 15               MR. ALDRICH:  Not right now.  Thank you

 16   for your time.

 17               THE COURT:  Counsel.

 18               MR. HAGUE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I'll

 19   address some of Mr. Aldrich's points.  The first one

 20   he said, which is that I'm getting up here today and

 21   making attacks on you.  I don't think I've done

 22   that.  If I have, I apologize.  But I don't think

 23   that I have done anything to attack your judgment or

 24   anything you do.

 25               I think I said that we owe a duty of
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  1   loyalty to you, and that facts were presented in

  2   front of you that were fraudulent.  I never said

  3   that this Court did anything wrong, and I've made no

  4   such attack on the Court.  And if I have, I

  5   apologize for that, and I hope the Court hasn't

  6   interpreted my argument today on behalf of my client

  7   as an attack on you.

  8               THE COURT:  I haven't.

  9               MR. HAGUE:  Thank you.  The second one

 10   is that Mr. Aldrich referring to all of these people

 11   here today and then somehow wants to use that to say

 12   you're up for election is so irrelevant to this

 13   case.  Most of these people here are not in this

 14   district.  They're here because they love

 15   Ms. Fallini, and they're here because their

 16   livelihood is affected by this decision.

 17               THE COURT:  I'm not letting emotion

 18   interfere with the decision.

 19               MR. HAGUE:  Thank you.

 20               THE COURT:  I don't care about these

 21   people.  I'm just kidding.  But I'm not --

 22               MR. HAGUE:  No.  I just want --

 23               THE COURT:  -- going to let emotion in.

 24               MR. HAGUE:  I just want the Court to

 25   know this wasn't some propaganda that we started six
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  1   months ago to make the Court feel pressure or

  2   anything.  They're here because they have

  3   supporters.  That happens in every case.

  4               THE COURT:  Sure.  That's fine.

  5               MR. HAGUE:  Your Honor, I am still

  6   shocked, and I am still scratching my head over this

  7   case because Counsel again has stood up here and has

  8   done nothing to rebut the fact that he sent requests

  9   for admissions to my client that were lies and then

 10   he used those to support a motion for summary

 11   judgment.

 12               You even asked him have you been to the

 13   accident site and he said no.  Rule 11, Rule 3.1 of

 14   Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct, and Rule 3.3,

 15   says that you have to do some reasonable duty to

 16   have some evidentiary support and law before you

 17   assert anything or file anything.  It is astounding

 18   that this case has been filed and that he never went

 19   to the accident site.

 20               Even that, his client admitted it.  Even

 21   that, it's in the accident report, and this Court

 22   took judicial notice of the fact.  And so the fact

 23   that he says that he didn't even bring this

 24   complaint, whatever.  He brought the requests for

 25   admission that were fraudulent.  He should have
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  1   corrected his misstatement when he knew and he knows

  2   now, that the Court, and the Court knows, that this

  3   occurred on open range, and that is a 100 percent

  4   affirmative defense.  All you have to do is say it's

  5   on open range.  Done.  There's no prove-up, there's

  6   no evidentiary hearing on that, nothing.  And the

  7   Court took judicial notice of that.

  8               With respect to finality, Your Honor,

  9   that argument is frivolous at best.  Rule 60 says

 10   after a final judgment the court may set aside a

 11   final judgment.  Rule 60 presupposes finality.  So,

 12   of course, there is a final judgment, and that's why

 13   we brought this motion.

 14               Your Honor, you've talked a little bit

 15   about estoppel.  You've talked a little bit about

 16   res judicata.  Estoppel, res judicata, claim

 17   preclusion, issue preclusion, they all mandate a

 18   prior proceeding with identical parties and

 19   identical issues that are actually litigated.

 20               Your Honor, Counsel's fraud on the Court

 21   by the use of request for admissions and a Rule

 22   60(b) motion to set aside that judgment for fraud

 23   upon the Court has never been litigated.  Perhaps

 24   the procedural path of this case has been upheld by

 25   the Supreme Court, but the allegations that opposing
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  1   counsel committed fraud upon the Court have not been

  2   claimed, litigated or reviewed at any point in any

  3   prior proceeding.

  4               Now, the Court has asked today to

  5   Counsel, does that matter?  Can you send someone a

  6   request for admission, Doesn't matter what it says?

  7   Doesn't matter if it's a complete lie.  I'll send

  8   some stranger request for admission.  Hey, admit you

  9   said that Dave Hague has herpes.  Okay?  Person

 10   laughs at it.  Right?  Thinks that's silly.  They

 11   don't respond.  Request for admission, deemed

 12   admitted, defamation, I win, case over.  That's what

 13   the Court's opening up the door for.

 14               That's why there are people here today,

 15   because they all own cows on open range, which now

 16   means there's going to be a precedence that any time

 17   you drive through and hit a cow, as long as you can

 18   catch somebody off guard, even if you're

 19   misrepresenting, even if you're lying, you catch

 20   them off guard, they're going to deem admitted as

 21   something that is false.  That is the problem with

 22   this case.  The Supreme Court did not decide that.

 23   Your Honor has never decided that.  We've never

 24   brought a Rule 60 motion, and we've never talked

 25   about fraud upon the Court.
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  1               The accident report, Your Honor, was

  2   discovered this year in 2014.  The accident report

  3   says -- and it's in our motion and it's attached --

  4   that the accident was on open range.  Mr. Aldrich

  5   has that report.  It was in his production of

  6   documents that he was going to submit at trial.  It

  7   was never submitted to us.

  8               Your Honor, Mr. Aldrich wants to have

  9   the Court claim that actual innocence is not

 10   relevant.  How can innocence not be relevant in this

 11   case?  Isn't there a way -- isn't there a way that

 12   we can relieve Ms. Fallini this judgment, an over

 13   $1,000,000 judgment that will crush her family, that

 14   will crush her livelihood, that will crush her

 15   profession, when there was a law designed to protect

 16   her?

 17               THE COURT:  How would it crush her

 18   profession?  No.  Let me withdraw that question.

 19   Let me ask you a more pertinent one.  If you're

 20   submitting -- and I'm sure you went into great

 21   detail in your brief.  I apologize for making you

 22   elucidate it again verbally.  But if you're

 23   submitting that Counsel committed fraud, let's be

 24   specific where the fraud occurred.  Was it in the

 25   request for admissions?
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  The fraud occurred at

  2   several different points.

  3               THE COURT:  But let's make it clear for

  4   the record.  If it's --

  5               MR. HAGUE:  Yes.

  6               THE COURT:  -- appealed up to the

  7   Supreme Court, we want them to look at the

  8   particular --

  9               MR. HAGUE:  Yes.

 10               THE COURT:  -- moment he's committed

 11   fraud on the Court.

 12               MR. HAGUE:  I believe he committed fraud

 13   when the complaint was filed because there was no

 14   basis to support it because the open range law.

 15   That was the first fraud.

 16               The second fraud was the request for

 17   admissions when he knew that it was on open range

 18   and he asked my client to admit a fact that was

 19   false --

 20               THE COURT:  Okay.

 21               MR. HAGUE:  -- that had no evidentiary

 22   support.

 23               THE COURT:  And you're purported to

 24   point at evidence to the Supremes saying here's how

 25   I know that he knew it was open range?

1181



Transcription   -   8/13/2014
Estate of Michael David Adams, et al. vs. Susan Fallini, et al.

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 info@depointernational.com Page 60

  1               MR. HAGUE:  Absolutely.

  2               THE COURT:  All right.

  3               MR. HAGUE:  Absolutely.

  4               THE COURT:  And that would be --

  5               MR. HAGUE:  That would be through the

  6   accident report, that would be through her complaint

  7   where she set forth the affirmative defense -- or

  8   her answer.  That would be in the complaint.  That

  9   would be in his document that he submitted to this

 10   Court and signed where he actually lists all the

 11   documents, the accident report, and where her

 12   affirmative defenses are stated again.

 13               THE COURT:  Because in the accident

 14   report it affirmatively stated this is --

 15               MR. HAGUE:  Affirmatively stated.

 16               THE COURT:  -- open range, and he knew

 17   that?

 18               MR. HAGUE:  And he knew that.

 19               THE COURT:  All right.

 20               MR. HAGUE:  The other part is when he

 21   filed his motion for summary judgment.  He had this

 22   Court enter judgment on a deemed admitted fact that,

 23   again, he knew was fraudulent.  That was the other

 24   fraud he committed upon the Court.  He did it again

 25   when the Court said I take judicial notice that this
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  1   occurred on open range.  That was the fifth time he

  2   had to say --

  3               THE COURT:  That was at the motion for

  4   reconsideration.

  5               MR. HAGUE:  Correct.

  6               THE COURT:  He is saying I have never

  7   committed fraud because I have never said this was

  8   an open range, never did.

  9               MR. HAGUE:  Absolutely has.

 10               THE COURT:  Fallini did.  Fallini and

 11   Kuehn said it's not open range, not me.  It's their

 12   fact, not mine.  That was his defense a moment ago.

 13               MR. HAGUE:  That's absurd.  That is

 14   absurd for me to be able to place a lie on a piece

 15   of paper.  He wrote down admit that this accident

 16   did not occur on open range.  He wrote that.  He put

 17   that in a discovery request, a request that's

 18   governed by Rule 11, a request that's governed by

 19   Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct 3.1 and 3.3.

 20   He wrote that down.  He sat at his computer and put

 21   that down when he knew that it was false.  She was

 22   silent about it, so it was deemed admitted.  That is

 23   fraud upon the Court.

 24               The cases we've cited are not as

 25   egregious as this.  The cases we have cited, the
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  1   defendant still has some problems.  The defendant

  2   still has to establish some defenses.  Ms. Fallini

  3   doesn't have to.

  4               THE COURT:  All right.

  5               MR. HAGUE:  Congress already gave that

  6   defense.

  7               THE COURT:  It's in my brain as I go

  8   through all this stuff.  And, yes, I have one.  It's

  9   boiling down to that issue.  Let me see how he

 10   responds to that issue.  Counsel.

 11               MR. ALDRICH:  Again, I guess I should have

 12   brought more transcripts than what I brought with

 13   me.  I will tell Your Honor that my recollection of

 14   what Your Honor said -- so let me back up for a

 15   second.

 16               We had a hearing on a motion for

 17   reconsideration of prior orders.  That motion was

 18   filed somewhere around July 2nd of 2010.  Okay?  And

 19   we came here and we -- Your Honor heard that.  And

 20   then I forget if it was the same day or a week later

 21   or something we did the prove-up.

 22               Somewhere in that hearing or in the

 23   prove-up hearing Your Honor said you were aware

 24   where the incident occurred.  I don't believe Your

 25   Honor said you were taking judicial notice of my
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  1   statement as to where it was and whether it was open

  2   range or not.  Okay?

  3               But again, we go back to -- I mean, I

  4   can see the Court's concerned about it.  This is

  5   just absolutely absurd to me that this is even an

  6   issue.

  7               There is no fraud on the Court here.

  8   The Court knew exactly what was going on, exactly

  9   that, yes, I sent requests for admissions and they

 10   were not responded to for months and months and

 11   months.  Okay?  Then I brought a motion for summary

 12   judgment.

 13               Here's the other thing the Court's got

 14   to understand.  If I had brought a motion for

 15   summary judgment with no affidavits attached to it,

 16   no evidence at all attached to it, explained what

 17   happened and said motion for summary judgment, Your

 18   Honor, grant it, and Mrs. Fallini had not responded,

 19   by rule I'm entitled to summary judgment because she

 20   didn't oppose it.  Okay?  That's an important thing

 21   here because, okay, we're trying to make an issue

 22   about this underlying stuff, but she didn't oppose

 23   the summary judgment either.

 24               Also, with regard to the report, I did

 25   not bring that with me today either.  I will tell
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  1   Your Honor it is my recollection that when I read

  2   the report they attached, especially about whether

  3   my client had been drinking, some of that stuff,

  4   that's more information than I had in the report

  5   that I produced, and it is also my recollection that

  6   I did, indeed, produce a report.  I don't remember

  7   much else beyond that because I haven't looked at

  8   it.  It hasn't been relevant to anything.

  9               But again, it's not -- this is not fraud

 10   on the Court.  Fraud is a representation made to the

 11   Court that someone knows is false with the intent

 12   that that party will rely on it so as to reach some

 13   result.  And I did not make any misrepresentation to

 14   the Court at all.  The Defendant made

 15   representations.  Yes, it's through not responding.

 16               THE COURT:  Did you have an ethical duty

 17   when she admitted -- and legally that's what she

 18   did -- when she admitted that it was an open range,

 19   did you have any kind of an ethical duty to say,

 20   well, I know it is, I know it's open range and I've

 21   seen the reports or whatever?  Did you?

 22               MR. ALDRICH:  (Indiscernible).

 23               THE COURT:  Did you know it was open

 24   range?

 25               MR. ALDRICH:  No.  I did not know it was
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  1   or wasn't open range, to my recollection.  I'm not

  2   -- I mean, I've never been there.  Okay?  But --

  3               THE COURT:  If you had known it was open

  4   range, did you have an ethical duty to say, even

  5   though she admitted this, Judge, I want you to know

  6   that I know it's open range?

  7               MR. ALDRICH:  I don't believe I did.  I

  8   don't believe I did.

  9               THE COURT:  You don't believe you had

 10   that ethical duty.  Okay.

 11               MR. ALDRICH:  Let's look at it in little

 12   bit different context.  Let's say that I've -- I

 13   mean, did I have a duty to call and say, hey, you

 14   didn't file an opposition to the motion for summary

 15   judgment?  I would say the answer to that is no.

 16               THE COURT:  He said a simple phone call

 17   could have -- you could have discovered it was open

 18   range.  Did you have a duty to make that simple

 19   phone call?

 20               MR. ALDRICH:  I sent out a discovery to

 21   find out.

 22               THE COURT:  All right.

 23               MR. ALDRICH:  And I'm entitled to do

 24   that.

 25               THE COURT:  All right.  We don't want to
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  1   beat this too much into the ground.  We've all made

  2   the arguments, and I'm not a fan of redundancy.  Is

  3   there anything else new that you guys want to add?

  4               MR. HAGUE:  No, Your Honor.  I would

  5   just ask that the Court follow the law and think

  6   about what's transpired in this case and think about

  7   the admissions that opposing counsel has made today.

  8   They're astonishing.

  9               I'm absolutely -- it blows my mind that

 10   he can stand up here today with a clear conscience

 11   and say he had no duty to investigate whether this

 12   was on open range when it was in our answer, and

 13   that he still has not gone out there, and that the

 14   accident report is irrelevant to the accident.

 15   That's absurd.  It's a violation of Rule 11, it's a

 16   violation of Rules of Professional Conduct, and a

 17   judgment should be set aside because it's the most

 18   egregious case of fraud upon the Court I have ever

 19   seen.

 20               THE COURT:  Counsel.

 21               MR. ALDRICH:  And I'll just be very

 22   clear that I stand here in clear conscience, Your

 23   Honor.  I have been completely honest with Your

 24   Honor and with everybody involved in this case from

 25   the very beginning, and I will continue to be that
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  1   way.

  2               And just a couple of comments that

  3   Mr. Hague made that I wanted to address.  He stated

  4   that all these people are here today because they

  5   will all be subject to what happens in this case,

  6   and I respectfully disagree.

  7               THE COURT:  I was going to tell him

  8   that, too.

  9               MR. ALDRICH:  It's very, very simple.

 10   That is absolutely not the case.

 11               THE COURT:  Is there any precedence --

 12               MR. ALDRICH:  When --

 13               THE COURT:  -- to this decision that

 14   will affect the other ranchers in any way?

 15               MR. ALDRICH:  Not even a little bit

 16   because here's -- think about it.  Accident happens

 17   in open range, and some horribly unethical lawyer

 18   like me comes in and sends out a request for

 19   admission that says admit this was not in open

 20   range.  All they got to do is write back and say

 21   deny.  Has no effect at all on any of these people

 22   and so it --

 23               THE COURT:  You think it has precedence?

 24               MR. HAGUE:  Your Honor, maybe the Court

 25   misunderstood what I was saying.
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  1               THE COURT:  All right.

  2               MR. HAGUE:  It affects them for two

  3   reasons:  One, because they are a tight-knit

  4   community and they want to see Ms. Fallini and her

  5   business succeed; two, it scares them.  They're not

  6   lawyers.  They don't understand the law.  It scares

  7   them that this happened to Ms. Fallini and they hope

  8   that it would not happen to them.

  9               THE COURT:  Sure.

 10               MR. HAGUE:  That's all I meant.  They're

 11   scared by the fact that someone could hit their cow

 12   and then one day they could wake up and someone's

 13   trying to take all their assets saying, sorry, you

 14   got a $2.5 million judgment against you even though

 15   you did nothing wrong.

 16               THE COURT:  Well --

 17               MR. HAGUE:  That scares them.

 18               THE COURT:  -- this is a very sad case

 19   for Ms. Fallini but a very good one for them because

 20   now they're all educated to know that all they have

 21   to do is say, hey, this is open range.

 22               MR. HAGUE:  Yeah, assuming they don't

 23   put their hands -- well, you know what?  She did do

 24   that.  They filed an answer in affirmative defense.

 25               THE COURT:  All they have to do is make
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  1   sure their lawyer's doing what they're paying their

  2   lawyer to do.

  3               MR. HAGUE:  You would hope that, right?

  4               THE COURT:  I'd hope that.

  5               MR. HAGUE:  Yeah.  I would, too.

  6               THE COURT:  All right.  Give me one

  7   minute, and I'll issue my decision.

  8               (Pause in the proceedings)

  9               THE COURT:  I don't know what I'm going

 10   to do.  I haven't flipped a coin yet.  No, I'm just

 11   joking.  All right.

 12               Let's walk through it.  You ready?  I

 13   got about ten pages of various notes up here, and

 14   we're going to address them all because it's

 15   important to Ms. Fallini, and it's important to all

 16   the people in the audience so that they know what my

 17   thought process is and why I'm doing the things I'm

 18   doing.  And I'm not even sure of my thought process,

 19   yet, either.

 20               It's the same way in criminal court.

 21   Whenever I'm thinking through all the facts and the

 22   arguments, I just kind of stall a little bit by

 23   walking through it with everybody to give me some

 24   time to think it.

 25               So what I'm actually doing is I'm
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  1   thinking to myself what should I do here, and I'm

  2   doing it out loud so you guys can actually follow my

  3   thought process.  I'm going to have to do it out of

  4   order.  It's going to be a little discombobulated

  5   for all of you because the notes are out of order,

  6   but let's walk through it all.

  7               One of the first things Counsel said was

  8   that all of you are here today because you have a

  9   stake -- I wrote it down.  That you have a stake in

 10   the outcome of this case.  And I wrote down the note

 11   to reassure you, again, that there's no precedent to

 12   this case.  This case means absolutely zero to you

 13   guys and to other judges in the case, except for, as

 14   the attorneys said up at the end and said

 15   emotionally you're attached to it.  You care about

 16   Ms. Fallini and you care about how this looks for

 17   the ranching industry or whatever, that emotionally

 18   you're attached.  But as far as legally goes and

 19   precedent and so forth, there's no precedent to this

 20   case at all.

 21               As a matter of fact, back when we were

 22   doing this case four years ago and so forth, if I

 23   remember correctly, we never even got into the facts

 24   of the case.  I know I didn't.  I never saw any

 25   driving report, I never heard anybody was drunk.  I
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  1   don't think I was even sure about where the accident

  2   occurred at.  All I saw in the complaint was at some

  3   highway out in rural Nevada, and we never got into

  4   the facts of this case.  Never during the four years

  5   it's been litigated have we gotten into the facts of

  6   this case.  It's a blank slate to me.

  7               Everything that's occurred in this case

  8   has occurred procedurally.  I filed this document,

  9   he didn't file his document in time, we didn't have

 10   discovery.  It's all procedure.  And so the reason

 11   I'm stressing all that to you is it has no

 12   precedence.  No other court in Nevada will look at

 13   this case to decide some kind of legal issue.  We

 14   never reached that point.

 15               Counsel said that there's been a lot of

 16   sleep lost in this case and that this young lady is

 17   100 percent innocent by law, and, yet, she's the

 18   victim of this case.  And I've lost a lot of sleep

 19   on it also over the years.  It's been frustrating

 20   for me.  At some point in the litigation, somebody

 21   -- one of the attorneys or a law clerk or somebody

 22   -- said to me -- you have to remember this is after

 23   years of dealing with Kuehn.

 24               Counsel was attacked personally, that he

 25   committed fraud on the Court.  I've had that happen
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  1   to me before, too.  And what it happens, when

  2   somebody attacks you, your brain falls apart, you're

  3   just flabbergasted, and you don't know how to

  4   respond, and that's what he just went through.  And

  5   it's frustrating for him.  It's frustrating for me.

  6               At some point in the litigation I

  7   learned this was open range, and open range is a

  8   complete defense to this case.  And so now I'm

  9   presiding over what you called an injustice, and it

 10   is an injustice.  There's got to be a way to remedy

 11   this.  I've lost sleep over it also.  But you also

 12   have to remember I don't think about this case all

 13   the time like you have for four years, and I don't

 14   think about it a lot like you folks have.

 15               We have the second busiest jurisdiction

 16   in Nevada with cases per judge.  And I've been the

 17   judge for 14 years, and about 10 years -- Judge

 18   Davis, when I became judge, was constantly nagging

 19   me.  Sorry, Judge Davis.  He was constantly nagging

 20   me that he be allowed to do the north and I do the

 21   south, I do Pahrump and so forth.  And I kept

 22   resisting it.  I didn't want to.

 23               But finally, after about two or three

 24   years, I gave in and said, okay, fine, I'll do

 25   Pahrump, you do the north, which means I ended up
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  1   doing about 60 percent of the caseload.  And the

  2   reason I'm telling you that is we have the second

  3   busiest jurisdiction in the state with about 2,700

  4   cases per year, and I was doing 60 percent.  So I

  5   was actually doing over 3,000 cases a year.

  6               So in the last 14 years I've done about

  7   40,000 cases, and that includes murders and child

  8   sexual assaults and all kinds of cases.  And so my

  9   mind's not on this case all the time like it is for

 10   you folks.  When I'm thinking about the case --

 11   because one of these attorneys bother me with

 12   appeals and motions and so forth -- then I lose

 13   sleep over it, and I wish there was a way to have a

 14   remedy also.

 15               One of the things Counsel said at the

 16   end was, Judge, follow the law.  Well, that's the

 17   problem all this time.  I've been following the law.

 18   When you guys elected me at different candidates

 19   nights, the people said to me are you going to

 20   follow the law or are you going to be like those

 21   activist judges that just do whatever they want to

 22   do and say it's equity and so forth?  And I always

 23   said, no, I'm just going to follow the law like

 24   Scalia, and I'm just going to -- and Thomas.  I'm

 25   just going to follow the law, and that's what I've
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  1   been doing in this case for four years.  And

  2   unfortunately, going down that path of following the

  3   law has led us to the point that we're at right now

  4   where Mrs. Fallini loses.

  5               And, you know, then people say to me in

  6   court, well, I'm going to appeal this up.  I'm like

  7   please do.  Please appeal this.  If I'm wrong, I

  8   want to know it.  District court judges have to make

  9   decisions right on the spot like I'm doing today.

 10   You guys have made the argument.  I have to make the

 11   decision.

 12               When you appeal it up to the Supreme

 13   Court, seven great, smart judges then have a year to

 14   look over it with their 14 law clerks and their

 15   staff of attorneys and decide if it's the right

 16   decision or not.  And if I'm making the wrong

 17   decision, I want to know about it.  Appeal it up to

 18   the Supremes so they can correct me.

 19               And this case was appealed up to the

 20   Supreme Court by good attorneys who made full

 21   arguments to the Supreme Court about why Judge Lane

 22   should be reversed, he was wrong.  And I wasn't

 23   wrong.  The Supreme Court didn't reverse me.  They

 24   upheld me on all the legal issues.

 25               I feel kind of trapped, too, in having
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  1   to make these decisions and follow the law.  I wish

  2   I could just decide it in equity.  You know what?  I

  3   just feel sorry for you, and I'm just going to set

  4   the law aside and rule in Ms. Fallini's favor

  5   because this shouldn't have happened.

  6               I'm actually a little bit embarrassed.

  7   On one of these sheets I wrote it down that it's

  8   always hard for a human being to have their

  9   weaknesses pointed out to them, and I've had my

 10   weaknesses pointed out to me in this case.

 11               I think the main attacks were that we

 12   should have known it was open range, and I'm

 13   embarrassed to admit I didn't.  I didn't know it was

 14   open range at the beginning.  It wasn't until a year

 15   or two into the litigation that somebody -- might

 16   have been your motion for reconsideration where you

 17   said take judicial notice it's open range.  And I

 18   was like oh, sure.  That's open range.  What's that

 19   mean?  And I'm learning, oh, crud, she shouldn't

 20   have lost this case.

 21               And I know it's a shame because if you

 22   had had a rancher as a judge, that rancher would

 23   have said what in the heck is this?  This is -- I'm

 24   kicking it out.  But I can't do that.  Even if I had

 25   known it was open range, I can't kick it out.  I
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  1   have to be neutral.

  2               It's not my job to go up and investigate

  3   and find out if it's open range or not for

  4   Ms. Fallini and help her out because Kuehn's not

  5   doing anything.  That's not my job.  I'd be

  6   improperly, unethical acting if I did that.  I have

  7   to go on what the attorneys show me.  Here's my

  8   motions, here is our admissions.  What do you do,

  9   Judge?  Follow the law.  And that's what I did.

 10               If you ever have a case about

 11   submarines, I know the law on that.  And I have to

 12   tell you, I'm totally ignorant on the politics of

 13   the open range.  You stated earlier in your argument

 14   that the ranchers are upset because there's, I

 15   guess, a movement to say it shouldn't be open range

 16   and people should be allowed to sue if they hit a

 17   cow and so forth.  And I have to be honest, that's

 18   news to me.  I don't follow rancher laws of open

 19   range and so forth.  I guess I will from now on, on

 20   the Internet, and what's going on.  And I take it

 21   that's an ongoing movement that's going on right now

 22   to --

 23               MR. HAGUE:  Well, it's -- well, I wasn't

 24   necessarily, Your Honor, speaking to the movement.

 25   I was, of course, speaking to the fact that there's
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  1   a huge concern that there is a set open range law by

  2   Congress and that it isn't protecting Ms. Fallini

  3   anymore because a request for admission was

  4   submitted that was false.

  5               THE COURT:  Okay.  So there isn't some

  6   movement to overturn that law and make open range go

  7   away?

  8               MR. HAGUE:  I'm not aware of a

  9   movement --

 10               THE COURT:  Okay.

 11               MR. HAGUE:  -- but I -- like you, I

 12   don't practice in -- you know, full-time in cattle

 13   and open range law, and so I'm also learning about

 14   it.  But the thing that I know is that there is a

 15   law that's out there that hasn't been repealed and

 16   it hasn't been changed, and it's a 100 percent

 17   defense, always.

 18               THE COURT:  Yeah, I know.  I agree with

 19   you.  That's the problem in this case, searching for

 20   a remedy.

 21               MR. HAGUE:  And I think the remedy's

 22   Rule 60, as clear as day.

 23               THE COURT:  Are you taking another shot

 24   at it?  Just kidding you.

 25               MR. HAGUE:  Probably.
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  1               MR. OHLSON:  Your Honor, would you allow

  2   me a couple of words?

  3               THE COURT:  Who are you again?  No, I'm

  4   just kidding.  I don't think so, Mr. Ohlson.  If I

  5   open that door again, then Aldrich has to speak

  6   again.  I'm pretty familiar with everything that's

  7   going on.

  8               MR. OHLSON:  All right.

  9               THE COURT:  I thought I saw Mr. Gibson

 10   in the audience.  He isn't here.  A few years ago,

 11   12, 13 years ago, I had a case here in town where a

 12   man went to the park and pulled his pants down and

 13   flashed some kids, which under the law is a crime

 14   called indecent exposure, and the State charged him

 15   with the wrong crime.  And the law says that the

 16   State is allowed to amend the crime up until the

 17   point where they close their case.  And the State

 18   had a brain eruption and didn't realize they had

 19   charged him with the wrong crime.

 20               They charged him with gross lewdness,

 21   which involves a touching, and there was no touching

 22   in this case.  So the State prosecuted the case,

 23   called their witnesses, did everything, presented it

 24   to the jury, closed their case for an illegal

 25   touching of a child when there was no touching.  So
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  1   when we went into chambers to do jury instructions,

  2   the defense was celebrating because they knew there

  3   was no touching, and they were going to get an

  4   acquittal.

  5               I knew what was going on.  I used to be

  6   a prosecutor, but it's not my job.  I have to be

  7   neutral.  I can't tell the State here's what you're

  8   doing wrong.  So we went into chambers, and the

  9   defense made a motion.  They wanted to get the case

 10   dismissed.  There was no touching involved for gross

 11   lewdness, he should be acquitted.  Summarily,

 12   acquitted.

 13               And the State argued in chambers that

 14   they should be allowed to amend it to indecent

 15   exposure, and I said no, following the law.  It's

 16   too late now, you've rested your case.  And they

 17   said, well, Judge, let us have a lesser included

 18   crime of annoying a minor and argue that to the

 19   jury.  And I said, well, no, I can't do that because

 20   the Supreme Court had a case about a year ago that

 21   where they went into the definition of annoying a

 22   minor and you don't meet that definition, so --

 23               And he said, Judge, let me try.  Let me

 24   argue it.  Let me appeal it.  Let me take it to the

 25   Supremes and argue it to them that they can adjust
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  1   their definition of annoying a minor so I can get a

  2   conviction on this guy for pulling his pants down to

  3   the kids.  And I said, well, you know, once a guy's

  4   acquitted, the State can't take things up.  So if I

  5   don't submit it to the jury and he's acquitted, it's

  6   over.  There's no double jeopardy.  So I guess I'll

  7   give you the chance to argue it to the Supremes,

  8   even though I think it's going to be reversed, and

  9   you can argue it up to the Supremes.

 10               So they submitted annoying a minor, and

 11   the man was convicted of it by the jury because the

 12   jury wanted to get him for something for what he did

 13   wrong.  And it was appealed to the Supreme Court and

 14   the Supreme Court reversed it, just like I knew they

 15   would.

 16               And because of that case, whenever I

 17   campaign, instead of being able to say I've never

 18   been reversed by the Supreme Court, I have to say,

 19   well, I've only been reversed once, and I -- you

 20   know, I should have followed my gut and just had the

 21   strength and the fortitude to say no, you're not

 22   appealing this to the Supreme Court, we're going to

 23   follow the law, and I'm never going to make that

 24   mistake again.  And here I am it again.

 25               MR. OHLSON:  Your Honor, please --
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  1               THE COURT:  Because I think --

  2               MR. OHLSON:  -- a couple sentences.

  3               THE COURT:  -- if you take this up to

  4   the Supremes -- if I rule in your favor and I say

  5   fraud on the Court and excusable neglect, and we'll

  6   send it up to the Supremes where they've got seven

  7   judges who can take a year with 14 law clerks and a

  8   staff of attorneys to decide if it's the right call

  9   or not, we'll let the Supreme Court decide, and

 10   they'll make the right decision, even though I don't

 11   think you're going to prevail, and I think the

 12   Supreme Court will agree with my gut feeling right

 13   now, which is it's not there.

 14               On the other hand, I knew the guy

 15   flashed the kids and was guilty, and I know that

 16   Ms. Fallini was on open range.  So let's give them a

 17   shot.  Let's let the Supreme Court decide if this

 18   was fraud on the Court based on your definitions.  I

 19   don't think it was.  And I should note for the

 20   record that Mr. Aldrich is right when he says I have

 21   not only done everything right in this case, but I

 22   went the extra mile.

 23               I remember my shock in chambers when

 24   Kuehn and Aldrich would come into chambers, and we

 25   were in there for the fourth or fifth time trying to
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  1   get Mr. Kuehn to respond.  And I had already

  2   sanctioned him three times; 250, 500, $1,000.  And

  3   we brought him into chambers again, and Mr. Aldrich

  4   said, Judge, this has been going on for a year and

  5   we can't get Kuehn to respond to this.  And I'd

  6   known Kuehn for 21 years and I didn't really want to

  7   hammer him, but I didn't know what else to do.  The

  8   law said I had to.

  9               And I said, Harry, I'm going to have to

 10   grant summary judgment on this.  I can't get you to

 11   respond.  And then for the fifth or sixth time

 12   Mr. Aldrich said, it's okay, Judge.  We'll give him

 13   another couple of months.  We'll give him another

 14   month, another couple of weeks.  Let's give him a

 15   chance to get these in because it was perfunctory.

 16   All he had to do was file denials.  I deny this

 17   admission.  I deny this.

 18               And Mr. Aldrich was cool about it for a

 19   year or two.  And I think he went the extra mile as

 20   far as trying to help Mr. Kuehn do the right thing.

 21   But my dilemma is your argument that Mr. Aldrich

 22   knew that this was open range, and you're saying he

 23   was wrong for submitting that, anyway.  Ethically,

 24   you may be right.  I don't know.  I guess I could go

 25   back and do some more research on it, rather than
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  1   just turning it over to the Supremes and letting

  2   them decide.

  3               If I make a decision that Mr. Aldrich is

  4   in the right and rule in his favor and deny your

  5   motion for reconsideration, can you appeal that up

  6   to the Supreme Court and let them decide?

  7               MR. HAGUE:  Well, Your Honor, I can try

  8   to appeal, but it's all going to be moot.  It's

  9   going to be a year-long process where he has

 10   aggressively gone after assets.  We have writs of

 11   execution.  We have writs of garnishment.  We have a

 12   judgment debtor's exam scheduled for today for the

 13   third one.  It's not right.  It will be moot.

 14               THE COURT:  Well, we talked about the

 15   injustice to Ms. Fallini, that her cow was on open

 16   range and she's getting hit for over a million.  On

 17   the other side of the coin is a family with a dead

 18   son who won a lawsuit, and now here it is four years

 19   later, five later, six years later.  That's kind of

 20   an injustice, too, to that family.  There has to be

 21   finality to things.

 22               MR. HAGUE:  I agree, Your Honor.  There

 23   does have to be finality, but these things have been

 24   uncovered over time.  And I think your instinct to

 25   grant our motion and let the Supreme Court decide if
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  1   that's wrong is the right thing to do not only

  2   morally, but I think that you have an absolute basis

  3   under Rule 60 because I don't know what fraud is

  4   upon the Court if this isn't fraud upon the Court.

  5               THE COURT:  Well, that's the dilemma.

  6   Give me one more second.  When I have questions in

  7   my mind, I turn around and ask my law clerk, and he

  8   says to me privately, Judge, you're (indiscernible)

  9   it.  Whatever you decide is the right thing.  And

 10   then I feel a lot better about my decisions.  Hang

 11   on one second.

 12                (Pause in the proceedings)

 13               THE COURT:  Let me say it out loud to

 14   him and get his opinion.  I wonder if we should take

 15   this back into chambers one more time, take one

 16   final look at whether or not an attorney makes a

 17   representation in his request for admissions, and

 18   then after the admission is made, whether or not

 19   that's committing fraud, ethically and legally.

 20   Give one more look at it.  Counsel cited cases, he

 21   cited cases.  And I wonder if we should do that.

 22   And I'm brilliant, right?  Of course.

 23               Let me take one more look at it, take a

 24   look at your arguments, because it's all boiling

 25   down to that simple issue, which is why I had you
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  1   address it.  And if I agree with you that it's fraud

  2   or if I'm not sure if it's fraud or not, we'll let

  3   the Supremes decide.

  4               If I'm confident that based on the laws

  5   that you've cited and the things you've cited in

  6   your brief that there was no fraud committed by you

  7   by asking for an admission that it was open range

  8   when you knew it wasn't, then I'll deny your motion.

  9   And I'll have that decision in the next two or three

 10   days.

 11               MR. HAGUE:  So Your Honor, can I ask you

 12   a quick question, then?

 13               THE COURT:  Yes.

 14               MR. HAGUE:  If you're going to have that

 15   decision in the next two or three days and take it

 16   under advisement, there are a few housekeeping

 17   matters that I think are really important.  One of

 18   them is that emotions are really high today, and

 19   Mr. Aldrich is scheduled a debtor's exam of

 20   Ms. Fallini.  He's also scheduled one of

 21   Mr. Fallini, even though he's not a debtor, so

 22   that's not a proper exam.  But I'd like to stay the

 23   debtor exam, and I'd also like to stay, just while

 24   you're making your decision --

 25               THE COURT:  What's the prejudice?
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  The prejudice is that if we

  2   prevail, then he's finding out information about

  3   assets, about financial whereabouts of things when

  4   this case could go the other way.

  5               THE COURT:  What's the prejudice to him

  6   finding out that information?  I could understand

  7   you making -- coming into court for an evidentiary

  8   hearing to argue to me that he shouldn't be allowed

  9   to collect that information, but I've had a hard

 10   time putting my finger on why there's prejudice.

 11   There's an argument that it's not community

 12   property, and I have to tell you, I disagree.

 13               I think if he has a separate trust and

 14   Ms. Fallini marries him and lives on the ranch for

 15   40 years and increases the value of it, she has a

 16   definite community-property interest in that

 17   increase, in that value.

 18               MR. HAGUE:  Well, I think that's not the

 19   hearing.  I disagree, but we can argue that at a

 20   different time.  So if there's not a prejudice,

 21   there is a prejudice for the fact that there are

 22   writs of garnishment and executions out there right

 23   now asking banks to turn over assets.  I think that

 24   should be stayed.

 25               THE COURT:  He's not collecting on them.
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  They could turn them over at

  2   any moment, right?

  3               THE COURT:  Yeah.

  4               MR. HAGUE:  If a bank is served with a

  5   writ of garnishment, they have a certain amount of

  6   time to respond.

  7               THE COURT:  Right.

  8               MR. HAGUE:  If they want to respond,

  9   they could provide those assets to Mr. Aldrich right

 10   now.  Is that not prejudicial?

 11               MR. ALDRICH:  If I may?

 12               THE COURT:  Yes.

 13               MR. ALDRICH:  I'll go backwards.  On the

 14   writs of garnishment --

 15               THE COURT:  Okay.  We're all over the

 16   place here.

 17               MR. ALDRICH:  Right.

 18               THE COURT:  Sorry about that.

 19               MR. ALDRICH:  On the writs of

 20   garnishment, I mean, the judgment was entered in

 21   2010.  I didn't execute while it was on appeal.  I

 22   could have because there was no stay.  So there's no

 23   basis to do that.

 24               With regard to the judgment debtor's

 25   exam today, I agree emotions are high, and I will
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  1   candidly admit I'm nervous about being here today.

  2   I do have a court reporter sitting over there who's

  3   been sitting there since 10:00 o'clock.  I would not

  4   want to be responsible for that court reporter's

  5   appearance fee.  Other than that, if they want to

  6   move it to a different day, I am willing to do that.

  7               MR. HAGUE:  We'd like to move it to a

  8   different day, Your Honor, if we could.

  9               THE COURT:  You'd be responsible for the

 10   fee?

 11               MR. OHLSON:  The appearance fee, yes.

 12               MR. ALDRICH:  Whatever the fee was to

 13   have the court reporter here today.  I don't know if

 14   she's local or -- I don't know what the deal is

 15   there, and I couldn't even make a representation as

 16   to what that amount is.

 17               THE COURT:  I was actually addressing

 18   not the garnishment but the motion for the subpoena

 19   duces tecum for the business records.  I'm inclined

 20   to grant your request to allow him to get the

 21   information that he needs in his investigation and

 22   research, but without granting his request to

 23   collect it, which is a different issue.  But I can't

 24   see how him gathering the knowledge of the trust and

 25   so forth is prejudicial.  You following me?
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  No, I disagree.  I'm not

  2   following you on -- we filed an objection -- we

  3   filed a motion to quash the subpoenas because they

  4   were asking for financial documents and records of

  5   non-defendant and third parties.

  6               THE COURT:  Right.

  7               MR. HAGUE:  And I don't see how that's

  8   proper.  I don't see how you can do that.  I don't

  9   see --

 10               THE COURT:  Yeah, we had that hearing a

 11   week or two ago.

 12               MR. HAGUE:  We did, and --

 13               THE COURT:  And I heard all your

 14   argument.

 15               MR. HAGUE:  I know, and you had said

 16   that you might have had some other questions for us

 17   today.

 18               THE COURT:  Yeah.

 19               MR. HAGUE:  That's the only reason I

 20   bring --

 21               THE COURT:  And the question I had was

 22   how is it -- I believe one of the arguments you made

 23   of -- besides the fact that it was a non-defendant,

 24   I believe one of the arguments you made was that it

 25   was prejudicial.
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  1               MR. HAGUE:  Yes.

  2               THE COURT:  And I had a hard time -- I

  3   believe the prejudice you alluded to was that it --

  4   what was the prejudice?

  5               MR. HAGUE:  The constitutional right to

  6   privacy.

  7               THE COURT:  Yeah.  Privacy.

  8               MR. HAGUE:  That's -- yeah, absolutely.

  9               THE COURT:  And I thought that penumbra

 10   was not quite there.  I didn't quite put my finger

 11   on that penumbra.  I don't see the prejudice of him

 12   gathering information if he can't collect from it.

 13   I mean, if he tries to collect, you could still come

 14   in and say, hey, that's private, it shouldn't be

 15   there.  But he should have the right to look and see

 16   if that trust was -- is now community property and

 17   has it been breached and so forth, unless there's

 18   some other --

 19               MR. HAGUE:  I guess I --

 20               THE COURT:  -- kind of prejudice I'm not

 21   aware of --

 22               MR. HAGUE:  No, Your Honor.  I just --

 23               THE COURT:  -- on such privacy.

 24               MR. HAGUE:  I struggle with it because

 25   the allegations that he has made or that there's --
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  1   that several fraudulent transfers has occurred with

  2   respect to these entities.  But I've practiced a lot

  3   of fraudulent transfer law in bankruptcy and

  4   receivership.  You've got to bring a complaint for

  5   fraudulent transfer, and then you go after the

  6   entity, and that's when you get to do your

  7   discovery.

  8               But if I get a lawsuit against you, I

  9   can't now go subpoena records of a bank where your

 10   dad or your mom or your wife or your sister and ask

 11   for their financially-protected records just because

 12   I have a judgment against you.  His judgment's only

 13   against Ms. Fallini, none of the other parties.  I

 14   think that's huge.

 15               I'd be very upset if somebody was

 16   getting my records without me ever even being sued

 17   or no allegations or no complaint for a fraudulent

 18   transfer under the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act.

 19               THE COURT:  Counsel.

 20               MR. ALDRICH:  Well, part of what he said

 21   I agree with.  I didn't ask for her parent's or her

 22   sister or -- I asked for her husband's records.

 23   It's community property.  So, I mean, we're sort

 24   of --

 25               THE COURT:  Anything else?
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  1               MR. ALDRICH:  We've been doing this --

  2   again, if they want to move the judgment debtor's

  3   exam today, I --

  4               THE COURT:  That's fine.

  5               MR. ALDRICH:  I don't want to have pay

  6   the court reporter fee, but I'm willing to move it

  7   until after the Court has issued a decision on this.

  8               If I may, just one last comment.  I just

  9   want to make sure I understand what the Court just

 10   said.  Is that you're going to make a decision as to

 11   whether I committed fraud on the Court or not?

 12               THE COURT:  That's his motion.  He wants

 13   us to reverse our prior decision and take this to

 14   trial --

 15               MR. HAGUE:  Absolutely.

 16               THE COURT:  -- because he committed

 17   fraud on the Court.

 18               MR. HAGUE:  Absolutely.

 19               THE COURT:  So I'm either going to have

 20   to say, yes, I find that you did commit fraud on the

 21   Court and therefore we're reversing everything from

 22   the last four years and we're going to start back at

 23   the beginning, or I'm going to have to deny your

 24   motion.

 25               MR. HAGUE:  Yeah.  And I guess while
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  1   you're doing that, I mean, unless you've already

  2   discounted my Rule 60(b)(1) motion for surprise and

  3   excusable neglect, which I also think is within our

  4   right because there's a new judgment, and that one's

  5   an easy call, I think, because I believe there truly

  6   was excusable neglect on the part of Ms. Fallini and

  7   her attorney.

  8               So I still think those are two issues,

  9   and they were certainly set forth in our motion.

 10   Roman numeral I is fraud upon the Court.  Roman

 11   numeral II is excusable neglect under 60(b)(1),

 12   which is a six-month time period.  Fraud upon the

 13   Court, Your Honor, has no limitations, and that's

 14   Supreme Court law.

 15               THE COURT:  Mr. Aldrich, I proceeded

 16   today upon the evidentiary standard of them

 17   presenting evidence that you committed fraud upon

 18   the Court based on their representations as officers

 19   of the court, and therefore, we didn't have an

 20   evidentiary hearing with people under oath and so

 21   forth.

 22               We just made arguments that as officers

 23   of the court, if you misrepresent something, you

 24   make fraud upon the court.  And that's how I

 25   proceeded today.  You don't have any kick against
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  1   that, do you?

  2               MR. ALDRICH:  No.

  3               THE COURT:  All right.  Anything else?

  4               MR. ALDRICH:  No, Your Honor.

  5               MR. HAGUE:  No.

  6               THE COURT:  I'll have the decision on

  7   the subpoena -- on the business records today.  I'll

  8   have the decision on your motion to set aside the

  9   previous trial and previous -- I'll have that within

 10   the next couple days while I do some research.

 11               MR. HAGUE:  Okay.

 12               THE COURT:  Okay.  Good to go?

 13               MR. HAGUE:  Thank you.

 14               THE COURT:  Court's adjourned.

 15               THE MARSHAL:  All rise.

 16               MR. ALDRICH:  Appreciate your time.

 17               (The proceedings concluded at 12:16

 18   p.m.)

 19                  *    *    *    *    *

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25
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  1                 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

  2

  3   STATE OF NEVADA     )
                      SS:

  4   COUNTY OF CLARK     )

  5

  6        I, Teri R. Ward, a duly commissioned Notary
  Public, Clark County, State of Nevada, do hereby

  7   certify:

  8        That the typewritten transcript of said
  recording is a complete, true and accurate

  9   transcription.

 10        I further certify that I am not a relative,
  employee, or independent contractor of counsel of

 11   any of the parties; nor a relative, employee, or
  independent contractor of the parties involved in

 12   said action; nor do I have any other relationship
  with any of the parties or with counsel of any of

 13   the parties involved in the action that may
  reasonably cause my impartiality to be questioned.

 14
       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

 15   in my office in the County of Clark, State of
  Nevada, this _____ day of ____________, 2014.

 16

 17

 18

 19           ____________________________________
          Teri R. Ward, CCR NO. 839
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